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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The Finance

          3  Committee is back in session and we are now joint

          4  with the Committee on General Welfare, chaired by my

          5  distinguished colleague, Bill DeBlasio. And I'm

          6  going to turn it over to Chair DeBlasio.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          8  much, Chair Weprin, and thank you for always being

          9  very supportive of the work of this Committee.

         10                 We welcome Commissioner Doar.

         11  Commissioner, as I said before, I appreciate you

         12  have been very candid and forthright and available

         13  at all times, and we very much appreciate that

         14  relationship and the good work you're doing. I look

         15  forward to asking a number of questions after your

         16  testimony.

         17                 I want to ask your forgiveness and

         18  that of the audience, that for a period of time I

         19  will be out of the Chambers because of an action the

         20  Land Use Committee is about to take on a very

         21  important site in my neighborhood, in my district,

         22  but will be rejoining as soon as possible.

         23                 I also would like to take this

         24  opportunity to welcome the newest member of the

         25  General Welfare Committee, Council Member James
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          2  Vacca. I'm very, very happy to have him on the

          3  Committee. As I told the Commissioner, when Jimmy

          4  Vacca gets concerned about an issue, watch out. He

          5  will be a focused advocate. But with that I just

          6  want to thank you again for being here and turn it

          7  back over to Chair Weprin.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We eagerly await

          9  your testimony.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Thank you. And

         11  good afternoon, Chairman DeBlasio and Chairman

         12  Weprin and members of the General Welfare and

         13  Finance Committees. I am very happy to be back here

         14  to provide testimony on Mayor Bloomberg's Executive

         15  Budget of 2008 for the Human Resources

         16  Administration and also to share with you some of

         17  the issues and program areas at HRA that I will be

         18  particularly focused on over the coming months.

         19                 Before I expand on these points, I

         20  would like to provide the Committee with an update

         21  on two issues that came up during the March

         22  Preliminary Budget hearing.

         23                 First, during that hearing concerns

         24  were raised that doctors within our WeCARE Program

         25  were not considering the notes and records that
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          2  clients present to them. This requirement to review

          3  documentation is stated very clearly in the WeCARE

          4  Guidelines, and since the hearing, HRA has

          5  reemphasized the importance of this requirement at

          6  its monthly meeting with each vendor.

          7                 Also, in an April 13th letter to the

          8  vendors, we reiterated that consideration of medical

          9  and related information is a contractual

         10  requirement, and that in order to ensure compliance,

         11  they must clearly document in the individual's

         12  record that all medical and related information

         13  provided by the client has been reviewed. Both

         14  contractors provided a prompt written response to

         15  our letters, both acknowledged the importance of

         16  review and consideration of all medical and related

         17  information provided by WeCARE participants, and

         18  describe the steps they were taking to ensure

         19  compliance.

         20                 Also related to questions the

         21  Committee raised, I need to report that in

         22  cooperation with Food Change and the New York City

         23  Coalition Against Hunger, HRA is implementing an

         24  innovative program to allow individuals at soup

         25  kitchens and food pantries to electronically submit
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          2  food stamp applications and the supporting documents

          3  to HRA.

          4                 In its pilot phase nearly 90 food

          5  stamp applications have been submitted from food

          6  pantries and soup kitchens. This project continues

          7  to be implemented on schedule, and we recently

          8  opened our fourth site in Queens.

          9                 The community partner for that

         10  location is the East River Development Alliance. In

         11  the first week of June we will be opening our

         12  Manhattan location, and will then have a community

         13  partner working with local food stamp offices to

         14  submit applications in each borough.

         15                 In addition to the community aspect

         16  of this project, the HRA offices involved have also

         17  benefitted from the implementation of the paperless

         18  office system.

         19                 This is a major technological

         20  investment that HRA is making in these offices in an

         21  effort to improve their ability to more efficiently

         22  process food stamp applications and

         23  recertifications.

         24                 The Mayor's formal budget submission

         25  for HRA requests $6.7 million in City tax levy
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          2  spending for the coming fiscal year. This spending

          3  includes the City's share of the major benefit

          4  programs available in New York City.

          5                 We believe that, if adopted, this

          6  level will allow HRA to meet its obligations and

          7  achieve its goals for the coming year.

          8                 Looking forward there are five major

          9  priorities for HRA. We must provide greater access

         10  to our work support programs, using technology and

         11  community-based providers.

         12                 We must continue to focus on

         13  employment as the best path out of poverty. We must

         14  reduce Medicaid fraud and abuse by providers. We

         15  must support the elderly and persons with

         16  disabilities to remain in the community, and we must

         17  help to lead a larger effort to help those in our

         18  City who appear to be falling the farthest behind,

         19  young, low-income men who we need to be better

         20  providers and role models for their children.

         21                 Let's start with the Greater Access

         22  to Programs Using Technology. The paperless office

         23  system food stamp pilot, which I mentioned at the

         24  outset, results in greater access to benefits

         25  because of its key elements, coordination with
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          2  community-based organizations and the use of

          3  technology.

          4                 Our Eligibility Data and Image

          5  Transfer System is another system that is improving

          6  access under a similar approach. EDITS allows for

          7  the electronic transmittal of Medicaid applications

          8  and image verification documents from health care

          9  providers and other community-based submitters to

         10  HRA's health insurance program.

         11                 After review by HRA eligibility

         12  workers, this system transmits data to the State WMS

         13  system and returns notification of a decision.

         14                 The first of the EDITS' modules, the

         15  Prenatal Care Assistance Program, has been in

         16  operation since the end of Fiscal Year 2006, and

         17  presently processes over 3,000 applications per

         18  month.

         19                 Recent expansions of facilitated

         20  enrollers at St. Luke's Hospital and of hospital and

         21  inpatient applicants for Beth Israel move from

         22  testing into pilots at the end of March.

         23                 Our HIV/AIDS Service Administration's

         24  housing unit has also automated the way it

         25  communicates with community providers. Our HASA
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          2  housing web-based application has reduced the time

          3  it takes to find housing for eligible clients and

          4  ensure accuracy and security of data. Providers can

          5  manage and update their vacancy rosters in real time

          6  and our caseworkers can also request permanent

          7  supported housing for their eligible clients through

          8  a tie-in to the system. This creates a seamless,

          9  online process, in connection between the caseworker

         10  and the vendor. The mechanism, or e-form, allows

         11  only providers with vacancies to receive referrals

         12  eliminating extra paperwork and duplicative

         13  referrals.

         14                 We are using other forms of

         15  automation for recertification and benefits. We have

         16  two food stamp offices in pilot program to recertify

         17  participants using an automated interactive voice

         18  response system.

         19                 This system gives clients who are

         20  aged or disabled and on fixed income the option of

         21  recertifying for benefits by calling into the system

         22  instead of appearing in person for an interview.

         23                 It can be accessed any time of day or

         24  night, prior to the scheduled in-person interview

         25  and is linked to the information on the agency's
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          2  database.

          3                 It uses that information to determine

          4  if the client's responses to the questions it poses

          5  regarding household eligibility factors differ from

          6  the data on file. If no changes are reported, the

          7  case is automatically recertified, as many as 35

          8  percent a month of those eligible to recertify via

          9  this process have done so, and we are seeking a USDA

         10  waiver to continue and expand this project and

         11  requesting Congress to allow the system to be used

         12  in lieu of in-person interviews.

         13                 Now let me turn to our focus on

         14  employment. The focus of our employment program

         15  continues to be moving people to work as quickly as

         16  possible. For most people the path to that goal is

         17  an integrated range of needed services. The model we

         18  have created provides for most people three days

         19  weekly in work experience in a full spectrum of job

         20  search, training and education services.

         21                 Our experience clearly shows that

         22  pursuing either activity exclusively is not the best

         23  approach.

         24                 Our Back To Work Program embodies

         25  this combined focus. Most recipients in back to work
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          2  participate three days weekly in work experience, in

          3  two days weekly with one of our Back To Work

          4  vendors. The Back To Work vendors provide job

          5  search, vocational training and other services

          6  designed to move people to employment. These vendors

          7  also provide retention services to people who have

          8  obtained employment.

          9                 We intend to further enhance these

         10  strategies for shelter residents, to allow them to

         11  take advantage of the rent supplement offered under

         12  Work Advantage. Our shelter residents have been very

         13  successful at moving to work. Last year our

         14  Riverview Center, which exclusively serves homeless

         15  shelter residents, placed more than 5,600 people

         16  into jobs. This year alone, over 1,400 job

         17  placements have been made. With the strong positive

         18  incentive provided by Work Advantage, combined with

         19  additional work we intend to do with DHS and our

         20  employment vendors, we expect these numbers to

         21  increase substantially.

         22                 As I testified in March, one of my

         23  highest priorities is to carry out the Mayor's

         24  commitment to support the integrity of the Medicaid

         25  Program.
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          2                 As you know New York City is part of

          3  the State's Medicaid Fraud, Waste and Abuse

          4  Demonstration Project, designed to empower

          5  localities to join with the State to increase

          6  vigilance over Medicaid providers, ensuring that

          7  funds are responsibly spent.

          8                 The City's new office of Medicaid

          9  provider fraud investigation charged with conducting

         10  investigations and audits of Medicaid providers in

         11  New York suspected of fraud, waste or abuse, is in

         12  its final stage of development, and should be fully

         13  operational by the end of this summer.

         14                 HRA has already submitted audit

         15  requests and we are currently coordinating efforts

         16  with the New York State Office of Medicaid Inspector

         17  General to ensure that duplicate audits of the same

         18  provider are avoided.

         19                 We have been and continue to be

         20  committed to supporting elderly and disabled people

         21  to remain in their homes and to avoid, or at least

         22  delay care in institutional settings.

         23                 Toward this goal, HRA, with the

         24  City's Department of Aging, has been leading a

         25  Citywide effort to plan for a long-term point of
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          2  entry system to streamline access to information and

          3  assistance on long-term care services for the

          4  elderly, and people of all ages with disabilities.

          5                 New York State awarded the City of

          6  $500,000 grant to analyze the current long-term

          7  system and to recommend next steps to develop and

          8  implement this program.

          9                 One of the major efforts to collect

         10  data for this analysis is an on-line survey which

         11  was distributed to nearly 1,000 local providers of

         12  long-term care. HRA is currently negotiating the

         13  contract terms with New York State and plans to

         14  reach all of its planning milestones by the fall of

         15  2007.

         16                 In addition, HRA's Adult Protective

         17  Services Program provides eviction prevention,

         18  assessment, undercare and preventive services for

         19  clients who require support to maintain their

         20  independence, to help address their unprecedented

         21  growth in this program, the largest class of new APS

         22  workers ever hired, a total of 50, started training

         23  this week. Following 30 days of training of the APS

         24  curriculum, City procedures and the automated

         25  system, these staff will be assigned to the boroughs
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          2  that have experienced the greatest growth in

          3  caseloads.

          4                 Before turning to our fifth priority,

          5  I think it's useful to take a look at the long-term

          6  picture regarding child poverty in New York, and how

          7  it shows us a path forward.

          8                 The two charts behind me tell the

          9  story very well. In the period starting in about

         10  1995, the far left chart, the work rates for single

         11  mothers with children rose dramatically in New York

         12  City. As a consequence, and also due to the array of

         13  work supports available to New Yorkers, such as food

         14  stamps, health insurance, child work collections,

         15  child care subsidies and Earned Income Tax Credit,

         16  the child poverty rate started a steady decline

         17  through a peak of 43 percent to the latest census

         18  poverty report figure of 28 percent. This is

         19  progress.

         20                 But Mayor Bloomberg believes it is

         21  not enough. A child poverty rate of 28 percent is

         22  not acceptable. That's why under the leadership of

         23  Deputy Mayor Linda Gibbs, the City is now moving

         24  forward with the recommendations of a Commission for

         25  Economic Opportunity which was tasked by the Mayor
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          2  to develop strategies to reduce poverty.

          3                 Under the guidance of the newly

          4  created center for economic opportunity, and with

          5  funding from the Innovations Fund, New York City

          6  agencies, including HRA are moving forward with more

          7  than 35 initiatives across the City.

          8                 But there is still even more to do,

          9  and a key area for attention is the other parent of

         10  children and single parent households.

         11                 I believe we need to do all we can to

         12  encourage and support young, low-income working

         13  fathers to support the economic and social

         14  well-being of their children. It is well established

         15  that children do better if they have two active and

         16  contributing parents, and it is also well

         17  established that the group that has seen the fewest

         18  gains during the past two decades has been young,

         19  low-income men.

         20                 We are eager to support employment

         21  and parenting programs for young men who are not

         22  working, and want to be stronger providers for their

         23  children. And HRA is active in creating supporting

         24  programs that pursue that goal.

         25                 For example, as a part of the CEO
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          2  initiatives, we have identified and sent letters to

          3  2,260 non-custodial parents who have child support

          4  orders that appear to require payments far beyond

          5  the parents' ability to pay. Where appropriate, we

          6  are offering to adjust the order and arrange for an

          7  affordable schedule for payment in concert with the

          8  Family Court.

          9                 We have also built an employment

         10  component into the process, and if the non-custodial

         11  parent is unemployed or significantly

         12  under-employed, he or she must agree to participate

         13  in our Support Through Employment Program.

         14                 We are also working with the

         15  Department of Corrections to better assist

         16  prisoners, many of whom are parents, as they return

         17  to the community. We will be training Rikers Island

         18  Discharge Counselors so they can better advise

         19  prisoners, whether custodial or non-custodial

         20  parents, on how to navigate the child support

         21  system. Also, a Child Support Liaison will be able

         22  to provide the counselor with the specifics of the

         23  prisoner's prior to release so if the circumstances

         24  warrant, the prisoner can be prepared to approach

         25  the Office of Child Support Enforcement for
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          2  Administrative Relief.

          3                 HRA is a large agency, and its 15,000

          4  employees are engaged on many fronts to help New

          5  York's most vulnerable populations. The information

          6  I have provided today only tells a part of the

          7  story, but I hope it has given you a sense of our

          8  highest priorities, and I welcome your questions and

          9  advice.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         11  Commissioner. We've been joined by a few more

         12  colleagues. We have Council Member Helen Diane

         13  Foster from the Bronx, and Council Member Letitia

         14  James from Brooklyn.

         15                 In the Ten-Year Capital Plan, in the

         16  Human Resources 98.7 million is allocated for data

         17  processing and information technology. And this

         18  represents 50.6 percent of HRA's 195.2 million

         19  overall Ten-Year Capital Plan. Could you please

         20  elaborate on some of the major projects that are

         21  ongoing, underway or planned for the immediate

         22  future?

         23                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Well, when we talk

         24  about systems and innovations that goes right to the

         25  very first area that I described in the testimony.
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          2  We need to make the paperless office system stronger

          3  and better, and more available across the City. We

          4  need to continue to modernize our systems as they

          5  age and as the technology used to build them becomes

          6  less effective or up-to-date, and then the various

          7  initiatives I described in either Medicaid or in

          8  HASA are two other examples.

          9                 I'd be happy to provide in writing a

         10  description of the specifics, if you'd like, but

         11  those are some of the major highlights.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Are there any

         13  other major projects that you didn't cover?

         14                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: We have a role

         15  with ACCESS New York. I don't know to the extent

         16  that we're involved and funding stream is related in

         17  that. There may be other major ones but those are

         18  the ones that are the most significant with regard

         19  to service to clients.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, the

         21  Executive Budget includes 86 million more than what

         22  is currently being spent on HRA personnel. Also,

         23  there are nearly 2,000 more budgeted positions in

         24  the actual number of staff at HRA; why is the

         25  personal service budget 12 percent higher than the
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          2  current spending level?

          3                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Well, there is

          4  growth in the cost of employees per -- the cost per

          5  employee, that's certainly definitely part of it.

          6  And that I think is probably the largest cause of

          7  the growth in personal services.

          8                 With regard to the number of

          9  headcount, our headcount is based in some respects

         10  on where we would need to be under a variety of

         11  circumstances, and where there have been a delay in

         12  hiring and replacement of people that have left,

         13  there has been some growth in the number of people

         14  leaving HRA and we have not moved as quickly as

         15  possible to replace them.

         16                 So that I think that summarizes the

         17  answer. There are some areas that I think really

         18  deserve attention, APS, HASA and Medicaid are three

         19  of them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So, how many

         21  positions are now open and do you intend to fill?

         22                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: The exact number I

         23  don't have in front of me. Nine-hundred are in

         24  process now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Nine-hundred.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Nine-hundred.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: That's a lot.

          4                 Are you taking resumes? We'll talk

          5  later.

          6                 The evaluation and measurement

          7  component of the Commission on Economic Opportunity

          8  or CEO, they always have like initials for

          9  everything, will be located in HRA. Between Fiscal

         10  '07 and Fiscal '08, a total of 6.7 million in City

         11  funds will be issued to evaluate the effectiveness

         12  of the new programs and also will be used to develop

         13  better indices to measure poverty in New York City.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: In the Executive

         16  Budget, individual CEO initiatives, only receiving

         17  funding in Fiscal '07 and 2008, none of the

         18  initiatives are funded in the outyears. Why is that?

         19                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Well, I think for

         20  one reason is that the purpose of the initiatives is

         21  to find out what works, study it, evaluate it, learn

         22  lessons from it, and then decide with regard to what

         23  the future funding levels should be. If that's your

         24  question about the lack of funding in the future

         25  years.
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          2                 I think that would be -- a lot of

          3  what we're attempting to do there is new, I think

          4  they're going to work, but I think we want to

          5  evaluate carefully and we're committed to ensuring

          6  that we hold ourselves to the highest standards of

          7  evaluation to ensure that we don't suggest

          8  recommendation for funding of programs that can't be

          9  shown to have been successful.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, as a

         11  follow-up to that, along with your evaluation

         12  program, how will you be able to determine the

         13  effectiveness of programs that have only been

         14  operating for a year and a half or less?

         15                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Well, that's going

         16  to be a challenge. To the extent that they have --

         17  if they haven't been operating for at least period

         18  of time, it's going to be very difficult. That's why

         19  the challenge the Mayor has given to us is so

         20  daunting, it is the way in which I think this

         21  Administration wants to work. We have a limited

         22  amount of time left, we've moving as fast as we

         23  possibly can to get these programs up, get some

         24  results resulted from them, evaluate them and then

         25  report them back to the public.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

          3                 On the issue of outstanding revenue.

          4  As of April 2006, HRA had 65 million in outstanding

          5  revenue from Fiscal '05, this is revenue that HRA

          6  was supposed to have received in Fiscal '05 but

          7  still has not. Why has HRA been unable to collect

          8  this revenue over a year and a half after the end of

          9  Fiscal '05?

         10                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I think we've made

         11  some progress in that; is that correct? Yes.

         12                 The largest component of that is that

         13  for some time the State of New York had instructed

         14  the City not to submit claims concerning housing for

         15  HASA clients. That issue has we think been

         16  successfully resolved, and we think that will result

         17  in that unclaimed dollars to be worked down

         18  significantly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Going to the Back

         20  To Work Programs and Begin Programs, how many

         21  clients are currently enrolled in the Back To Work

         22  Program?

         23                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Well, everybody

         24  who applies for cash assistance who is immediately

         25  enrolled in Back To Work, so the theory of Back To
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          2  Work contracts is that everyone who comes in and

          3  seeks cash assistance and can work is referred to

          4  that. It's a very large percentage of that cash

          5  assistance caseload. I can't give you the exact

          6  number, but it's a large number. It has gone down

          7  because our cash assistance caseload is dropping.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: It has gone down

          9  in what period of time?

         10                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: The cash

         11  assistance welfare caseload has dropped by 20

         12  percent since Mayor Bloomberg took office, and since

         13  the beginning of this year it's dropped again

         14  another, more than 7,000 recipients.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, going to

         16  education and training, could you explain for us

         17  what an individual training account voucher is, who

         18  are the vouchers available to, how do clients learn

         19  about them, et cetera.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Well, the

         21  education and training voucher is something that a

         22  client can use to purchase education and training at

         23  some provider somewhere else. That's what it is, and

         24  we make it well known to folks who are in our cash

         25  assistance program that they are available, and we

                                                            27

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  offer them to people who are in the contracts.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We understand

          4  that as of March 2007, only 76 people were enrolled

          5  in training through these individual training

          6  account vouchers, why is that number so low?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I do not know the

          8  answer, but I'm happy to look into it, and write you

          9  an explanation.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, a couple of

         11  my colleagues have questions. I'm going to get back

         12  to some staff-related questions that Councilman

         13  DeBlasio would have asked had he been here, but in

         14  the meantime I'm going to turn it over to Letitia

         15  James, who had a few questions.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you. Just

         17  following up on the Chair's questions with respect

         18  to the training programs, I do know that the Hope

         19  Program, which is not actually in my district, it's

         20  in Council Member Yassky's district, but a lot of

         21  the constituents live in my district. They get some

         22  of those training programs. The question I would

         23  like to know, when you send a letter to the Chair,

         24  if you can just indicate what programs I can refer

         25  people to, particularly in downtown Brooklyn and in
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          2  Central Brooklyn, that would be greatly appreciated.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: As a result of

          5  the TANF reauthorization, I know that there's more

          6  work requirements. One of the things that I've heard

          7  from some of my constituents is that going through

          8  the Jobs 1 Program, which is a program offered by

          9  the City of New York, Workforce 1, that does not

         10  qualify as a work participation, they could not,

         11  residents who were on public assistance could not

         12  get credit for going to Workforce 1; why is that?

         13                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Do you mind if I

         14  have Deputy Commissioner Pat Smith come up and help

         15  you with that?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Sure.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SMITH: Council

         18  Member, the Workforce 1 Career Centers are run out

         19  of our Department of Small Business Services in the

         20  City.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SMITH: And each

         23  of our employable clients is connected, as

         24  Commissioner Doar said, to one of the Back To Work

         25  vendors. That is their primary activity.
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          2                 There is very little additional that

          3  occurs at the Workforce 1 Career Centers, however,

          4  the Workforce 1 Career Centers are valuable in that

          5  they have job listings from the community, et

          6  cetera. But the individuals, for their work

          7  participation, which has to be very well documented

          8  in order to submit to the federal government, they

          9  have to be engaged in very structured activities,

         10  and at this point in time the activities at the

         11  Workforce 1 Career Center are open to all the

         12  citizens of New York City, including individuals who

         13  may be involved in our programs, but they do not

         14  currently meet the rigorous requirements of the

         15  federal government, such as time reporting, specific

         16  reporting and limitation of certain type of

         17  activities that's currently in the federal

         18  guideline.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Let me tell you

         20  the problem. You know, Downtown Brooklyn is booming.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SMITH: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I'm working

         23  with SBS and with Administration and Downtown

         24  Brooklyn to refer all the jobs in Downtown Brooklyn

         25  to Workforce 1. And, so, these residents, these
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          2  individuals who are on public assistance who would

          3  seek these types of jobs and are eligible for these

          4  types of jobs, unfortunately cannot take advantage

          5  of all of the programs that I am parking at

          6  Workforce 1, and so that's a problem. And we're

          7  talking thousands of retail jobs that are coming,

          8  wholesale jobs that are coming on line, cruiseline

          9  jobs that are coming on line, and they can't take

         10  advantage. They can do it on their own time, as you

         11  know, they have a number of challenges in their

         12  lives.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SMITH:

         14  Interesting you should bring that up, Council

         15  member, because just yesterday Commissioner Doar and

         16  members of the respective agencies met with

         17  Commissioner Walsh of Department of Small Businesses

         18  and that was one of the agenda items, how our

         19  vendors who are, as you may be aware, in the main

         20  the same vendor community that runs the Workforce 1

         21  Career Centers, how they can tap into the people who

         22  are participating through the public assistance

         23  program in order to fill those jobs.

         24                 And I know Commissioner Walsh, as I'm

         25  sure you're aware is looking at a sector approach,
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          2  and that's what we were just discussing yesterday.

          3  So, your thoughts are absolutely in sync with the

          4  way the Administration is going.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

          6  There are two large supermarkets coming on line and

          7  I really want these residents to take advantage of

          8  these positions.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SMITH:

         10  Absolutely. It's a great opportunity.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

         12                 The second question is, I know that

         13  the number of people in shelters -- not the

         14  shelters, excuse me, food pantries has increased.

         15  I've seen it myself. The question is whether or not

         16  there has been an increase, a current increase in

         17  the demand for emergency food services in the

         18  executive budget.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: If you're

         20  referring to the food stamp utilization, it has gone

         21  up dramatically, mostly among working New Yorkers.

         22                 That has happened, led to an increase

         23  in food stamp use.

         24                 If you are referring to the Executive

         25  Budget concerning dollars for food pantries?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: The Executive

          4  Budget does not reflect that increase.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Any idea, was

          6  an increase sought?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Not by HRA.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay. Well, I

          9  know that the City Council, I believe when I first

         10  came into office that was one of my initiatives and

         11  it's because I walk my district and throughout

         12  Brooklyn and I see these lines and they're pretty

         13  overwhelming, and so I just thought as a government

         14  we should do more. And, so, I know this is the

         15  Executive Budget, but obviously for anyone who is

         16  out there, the Mayor of the City of New York should

         17  really increase the budget with respect to food

         18  pantries. It's absolutely necessary. It's absolutely

         19  needed. Despite the boom, there are a number of

         20  people who are suffering.

         21                 My other question has to do with, is

         22  there additional outreach workers for the food stamp

         23  program as part of the Executive Budget?

         24                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I don't believe

         25  so, no, there is not additional outreach.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Although we are

          4  engaged in outreach efforts and we believe in making

          5  sure that people are aware of the availability of

          6  food stamps, and to a large extent our efforts to

          7  make food stamps available through community-based

          8  organizations is, we think, the strongest best way

          9  to get to ensuring that folks can get access to food

         10  stamps in an easy way.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: In response to

         12  the Chair's question, you said there are 7,000

         13  people who are now no longer in public assistance.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: From the beginning

         15  of the year at least, I think. That's about how many

         16  the recipient count has gone down since the first

         17  year.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Where have they

         19  gone?

         20                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Well, to a large

         21  extent they've gone to work. They have found other

         22  resources that have made them able to survive

         23  without cash assistance. They have not necessarily

         24  gone off public assistance completely. They may be

         25  recipients of food stamps, they are likely, could
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          2  very well be recipients of Medicaid, they might

          3  benefit from the Earned Income Tax Credit, they

          4  might receive child support collections and they may

          5  get child care subsidy.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Do we track

          7  them at all?

          8                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Well, we have some

          9  sense of where people are in various programs. I

         10  think we need to do a better job of sharing data so

         11  that we get a sense of how people leave one program

         12  and take advantage of the benefits of others.

         13                 But there has not been large scale

         14  demographic analysis. There is not an ongoing

         15  determination to track people as they leave cash

         16  assistance, as far as I know.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And my last

         18  question or point is, tomorrow I know we have a

         19  meeting regarding Black Vets for Social Justice.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: That continues

         22  to be a problem or an issue, the number of -- the

         23  fact that they lost their contract. So, I look

         24  forward to meeting with you tomorrow to find out, to

         25  get further details with respect to why they lost
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          2  their contract. Thank you.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I'm looking

          4  forward to that meeting, too. Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Thanks.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

          8  Council member. We've been joined by Council Member

          9  Gale Brewer, who I believe has a question.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         11                 A couple of questions on technology,

         12  which I appreciate your response to from the last

         13  hearing.

         14                 With the food stamps, I know that

         15  you're certainly trying between Integrated Voice

         16  Response, IVR, and the paperless office system, and

         17  the community-based organizations, and, of course,

         18  ACCESS NYC. So, I know that things have been going

         19  on in Queens and I guess specifically Long Island

         20  City and then you'll move into other boroughs; can

         21  you just help me to understand the timing of some of

         22  this and how IVR will be integrated in addition to

         23  the paperless office system? How will people be

         24  able, the non-profits, what kind of technology did

         25  they need, and what's the timing of implementing?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Well, with regard

          3  to the paperless office implementation,

          4  community-based organizations, I'm going to have to

          5  -- I'd like to give you in writing a description of

          6  the roll out of that throughout the City's and our

          7  current plans. And the same with IVR. What they need

          8  is they need, what we need to have in those

          9  locations is PCs that are connected to our system,

         10  and imaging equipment so that the documents

         11  necessary for an application can also be transmitted

         12  to the City. And then we need, I think we need to

         13  find a way to train folks so they know how to use

         14  that equipment.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The reason I

         16  ask this is because when Manhattan had our budget

         17  hearings, we had like 600 non-profits come,

         18  obviously cultural, social service, everybody, the

         19  number one capital request from 350 groups is

         20  technology support and they call it an unfunded

         21  mandate. You're not the only agency that contracts

         22  out with non-profits, but understandably, you have

         23  confidentiality, you have lots of issues that maybe

         24  a cultural organization doesn't, and certainly

         25  computers are needed to respond performance-based
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          2  and just on-line applications, et cetera.

          3                 So, are you looking at some of these

          4  community-based organizations and what their

          5  technology needs are? Are you going to be able to

          6  fund them, or are they going to have to? How does

          7  that work?

          8                 I also spoke recently with Jack

          9  Krascoff (phonetic) at Baruch with another 300

         10  non-profits, and guess what? It was the same topic.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: As I outlined in

         12  my testimony, that is an area that I have a great

         13  interest in, but I need to be clear: you're right

         14  that we need to look carefully into costs and

         15  funding sources, because we certainly don't want to,

         16  while we believe very strongly that this is a very

         17  good method of improving accessibility to our

         18  benefit programs in a much better way, we have to be

         19  very careful about how many commitments we make with

         20  regard to funding streams and costs, and whether the

         21  funding efforts we want to do are covered by either

         22  federal or State funding streams.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: In terms of

         24  for you and for the non-profits that you're saying?

         25                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: For both, yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And how does

          3  ACCESS NYC, obviously I've used the system, is that

          4  being implemented improved? Because it's mostly

          5  downloadable now but not implementable, sort of.

          6                 Is that part of your budget?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Well, we are a

          8  partner in the ACCESS New York NYC effort.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: And we bring to it

         11  what we believe is the avenue that should be

         12  pursued, which is an ability to electronically

         13  transmit applications.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         15                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I can't say that

         16  the decision on time frame for the whole project,

         17  what the current position is, but that's the desire

         18  to see happen.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Because

         20  that would help you in many areas of benefits.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So that's an

         23  OMB question.

         24                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Bigger issue than

         25  HRA.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So we will ask

          3  OMB.

          4                 And in terms of your -- you've got

          5  EDITS, you've got the data warehouse, are there

          6  other ways in which you are looking to budget for

          7  technology, besides the ones you outlined in your

          8  testimony?

          9                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I think there are

         10  and I think they're contained in the budget, and I

         11  also I think wrote to the Council Members after the

         12  last hearing.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I have it

         14  here.

         15                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: And those are the

         16  ones that are most prominent, if you'd like a very

         17  exhaustive line-by-line I can do it for you, but not

         18  --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, the main

         20  issue then is to look at the budget for ACCESS NYC

         21  which could in fact assist the individual and the

         22  non-profit, as long as they have some hardware that

         23  is current and able to be networked and able to be

         24  fast.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Council member,
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          2  the only cautionary note I would give on that, is

          3  that we have a demand in HRA to get the paperless

          4  office system because it's working in this pilot

          5  program, more available in other places, and make

          6  that successful.

          7                 That's a little bit HRA centric.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Correct.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: We focused on our

         10  clients and our needs. We need to be careful as a

         11  City, that when we look at Citywide projects we

         12  don't absorb these very successful and small

         13  projects, and then end up actually slowing them down

         14  or preventing them from making advances that if left

         15  alone they could have done. So, I just wanted to --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, so what

         17  you're saying is get this working and then see how

         18  it fits in or doesn't into the larger perspective.

         19                 You have a number attached so you

         20  could let us know for the data warehouse issues? So,

         21  those are obviously big numbers. So, that's all

         22  capital?

         23                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Yes, I might have

         24  to get back to you on that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: All right. I
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          2  would be curious about that. And I guess my only

          3  other question is, about the timing for the food

          4  stamp and the other boroughs you'll let us know?

          5                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Because it

          7  doesn't have a timing. All right, thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         10  Council member. We've been joined by Council Member

         11  Helen Diane Foster from the Bronx. The next

         12  questioner is Council Member Jimmy Vacca.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Commissioner,

         14  good afternoon.

         15                 Several points I wanted to clarify,

         16  when you say we have a poverty rate in New York City

         17  of 28 percent.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Child poverty.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Child poverty

         20  of 28 percent. That rate basically is a child and a

         21  family of four is the income we're using, 19,000

         22  something? What do we mean by poverty? I think the

         23  federal rate is 19,3?

         24                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I think that's

         25  about right. I don't know exactly, but that's right.
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          2  The income levels are low and so if that's the point

          3  you're going to make, that's a good one.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Twenty-eight

          5  percent of our kids are living in families of four

          6  making 19,3, if it was a family of three it would be

          7  17,8, something like that?

          8                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Yes, you're right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: The general --

         10                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: The only caution I

         11  make about that is this is the child poverty rate

         12  without adding in the benefits available, some of

         13  the benefits that I've talked about, food stamp

         14  benefits are not counted as income in this

         15  measurement. The Earned Income Tax Credit is not

         16  counted as income in this measurement. The value of

         17  health care coverage is not counted as income in

         18  this measurement. So, I didn't make that point in

         19  this testimony, the Census Bureau does provide data

         20  on child poverty rates and those income sources are

         21  factored in as lower, but you should be aware of

         22  that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: My other

         24  questions were, I was concerned about two things,

         25  people, you're talking about food pantries, and I
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          2  think they're very important. When I first came to

          3  the Council a year or so ago, we discussed a number,

          4  to the best of my recollection, of 600,000 people in

          5  New York City who are eligible for food stamps but

          6  do not receive them. Is that a relevant number

          7  today, first of all, and are we making attempts to

          8  get that number down? I should clarify, your

          9  testimony indicates you are making attempts.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: So, my so my

         12  question is question is how successful are the

         13  attempts and what do you think a relevant number

         14  would be today?

         15                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I think the

         16  attempts to make food stamps more accessible for

         17  working New Yorkers have been very successful in the

         18  Bloomberg Administration, and in other places of the

         19  country as well, particularly in the City of New

         20  York.

         21                 Having said that, the estimate of how

         22  many folks are eligible but not seeking food stamps

         23  or not on food stamps, excuse me, ranges depending

         24  on who does the measurement, but it's in that range

         25  that you talked about, the 400,000 number. But the

                                                            44

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  question is, what is it that is preventing them from

          3  getting food stamps? Is it barriers that we set up,

          4  notwithstanding all of our efforts to make it as

          5  easy or as simple as possible? Or is it the rules of

          6  the program, as provided by the federal government,

          7  which in some cases we believe are overly stringent

          8  and difficult for people that are seeking a food

          9  stamp allotment of relatively small dollar amount?

         10  Is it the small dollar amount for the minimum grant,

         11  which I think is only $10, which we're seeking to

         12  make higher? Or is it a feeling on people's, a

         13  genuine and honest feeling on people's part that

         14  they've got lots of things they need to do in the

         15  course of the given day, and the reward factor for

         16  applying for food stamps isn't worth the trouble.

         17  And then there is the cultural barrier among some

         18  folks still feeling that any kind of government

         19  benefit is something that they don't want to be

         20  involved in.

         21                 My job, HRA's job, is to make sure

         22  the things within our control with regard to those

         23  barriers can be brought down, so that folks who are

         24  in need or are eligible for food stamps can apply

         25  and access them in a relatively simple and easy
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          2  manner.

          3                 Having said that, I could do all

          4  those things well, and there still could be people

          5  who are eligible for food stamps who would not

          6  apply.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I agree. And in

          8  our district offices, many of us do casework where

          9  we have people coming in for the food stamps, the

         10  HEAP, the SCRIE, the whole variety of services, many

         11  people getting them that never had been before.

         12                 My last point that I was concerned

         13  about, Adult Protective Services, your testimony on

         14  page six, where I know what APS does, but my

         15  question here is, you mentioned an unprecedented

         16  growth in this program. Now, knowing what APS is,

         17  why do we have an unprecedented growth? What has

         18  caused an unprecedented growth in the APS program?

         19  The backdrop for that in my mind, I recently met

         20  with Legal Aid, and representatives from Legal Aid,

         21  and basically focusing, saying that the Bronx has a

         22  higher rate of evictions and a higher rate of tenant

         23  displacement than any other borough.

         24                 Now, are we seeing an incident in my

         25  borough that perhaps is different, or is this
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          2  Citywide? Where are we getting the growth and what

          3  accounts for it?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I think in part it

          5  could be the landlord tenant relationship you

          6  describe, I also think the population generally is

          7  aging, and that's causing an APS growth. Those are

          8  the two factors that I think are most likely to be

          9  causing and affecting that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I was on the

         11  same page. I wrote a little note to myself, mental

         12  health. Do we have the link for senior citizens who

         13  can no longer care for themselves? Is there a mental

         14  health linkage to services, day care -- not day

         15  care, day program services and things of that type?

         16                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: There is, and we

         17  need to work very hard on the APS case, so to ensure

         18  that those linkages actually happen.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Because as you

         20  know, I was speaking about dementia and related

         21  things that affect the elderly.

         22                 An elderly person with dementia, it

         23  takes time. They're often not able to care for

         24  themselves until they reach the point where there is

         25  a point of no return. There is a period where they
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          2  can be kept at home, and not be a client of APS if

          3  we give mental health and related services and do

          4  that kind of work.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: This is a very,

          6  very big issue in the coming years. It's going to

          7  get bigger and unlike other programs, the APS

          8  program does not have a strong state leadership role

          9  that comes from the State of New York or a strong

         10  federal role. It's pretty much a program on its own

         11  in all the different social services departments

         12  across the country, so it's one we all have to focus

         13  on I think very intently.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Lastly, I just

         15  stress the needs for the linkages because seniors

         16  are living to be older, and as you live to be older,

         17  the likelihood of dementia increases.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: That's another

         19  cause.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: You know, I

         21  don't want to use the term 2030, because I would

         22  like more of an immediacy attached to this. This is

         23  happening now. In people's apartments, in people's

         24  lives, any time their families are in another state,

         25  and are not accessible, and we have people that I
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          2  know of through APS, then with your help, your

          3  agency's help, that really could not function on

          4  their own.

          5                 So, I see mental health services

          6  early on as a component that you may want to

          7  coordinate with the appropriate agency, with the

          8  Department of Health.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Very good.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Thank you,

         11  Commissioner.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         13  Council member.

         14                 Commissioner, we understand from a

         15  letter the Committee received in April, that some

         16  food stamp offices have such limited electrical

         17  capabilities that only some of the electrical

         18  equipment can be used at one time.

         19                 How many food stamp offices have to

         20  limit the number of electrical appliances used at

         21  one time due to these electrical capabilities, and

         22  which offices?

         23                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I don't have that

         24  in front of me, but if that's a follow-up question

         25  to a letter that we sent, I'd be happy to give you
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          2  an update on where we are with that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, if you

          4  could provide it to this Committee, that would be

          5  appreciated.

          6                 And we also understand that in some

          7  food stamp offices, workers have to share phones, do

          8  you know how many front-line workers in that

          9  situation where they're sharing the same phones?

         10                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I think we did

         11  reply to that question. I don't know the number

         12  today, I'd be happy to look into it.

         13                 We try to work very hard to ensure

         14  that our workers have all the tools they need to

         15  perform their job. In the event this is an issue in

         16  any office, it is something that I will be committed

         17  to following up on.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         19                 And on another subject, we understand

         20  that the EGE Program, which stands for Education for

         21  Gainful Employment, was formerly funded by the

         22  State, however, last year the State put the EGE

         23  program into the FFS block grant, and now New York

         24  City is not allocating funding for this program.

         25                 While we understand that HRA has
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          2  limited funding, could you please explain HRA's

          3  decision not to fund what we consider a flexible

          4  performance-based program that has produced

          5  considerable success in job placements and

          6  retention?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: The flexible fund,

          8  the way you describe it is correct. The State had

          9  been funding it directly, and then they didn't

         10  really fund it in the flexible fund for family

         11  services, they said that's where you should go to

         12  get the funding for it, and there is a whole variety

         13  of other services that have claims on flexible fund

         14  dollars, and HRA, along with other agencies and OMB,

         15  make decisions on what programs are most effective,

         16  and that is the principle reason, you know, an

         17  analysis of all the factors and the competing

         18  interests, when you have a limited block of dollars

         19  you have to make decisions and that is what led to

         20  our deciding to pick the programs we thought were

         21  most effective.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, is there

         23  any way we could possibly find some dollars to at

         24  least handle some of the clientele that were being

         25  serviced by this program?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I would be happy

          3  to consider it. I don't have it lying around. I

          4  don't have it here immediately available, but --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, we've got

          6  all of those vacancies that haven't been filled. We

          7  got that money. All right, we'll have a further

          8  discussion.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: All right, we'll

         11  have a further discussion about that.

         12                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We are happy to

         14  hear that HRA is now requiring WeCARE vendors, FEGS

         15  and Arbor, to provide documentation in clients'

         16  files demonstrating that WeCARE doctors are

         17  consulting information and notes provided by a

         18  client's own doctor. How will you evaluate vendor

         19  compliance with this request? Is it done on an

         20  ongoing basis, or is it just case-by-case?

         21                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: As I mentioned in

         22  my testimony, we require that they document it. We

         23  have a quality assurance vendor coming on soon that

         24  will help us do that as well. This issue will be

         25  covered in that. We have monthly meetings. We have a
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          2  whole array of ways in which we require the vendors

          3  to report to us.

          4                 You can be assured that we will

          5  monitor their compliance with that requirement.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Are you don't

          7  spotchecks?

          8                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Deputy

          9  Commissioner Lipton says to me that we are.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         11                 Would HRA consider creating a hot

         12  line for WeCARE clients to call, to report any

         13  difficulties, to request assistance with steps in

         14  the assessment process and other program

         15  requirements?

         16                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Dr. Lipton informs

         17  me that we have asked the vendors to create their

         18  own hotlines for that purpose, and they have done

         19  that. Excuse me, they have agreed to do that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: They have agreed

         21  to do their own hot lines?

         22                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         24  Brewer.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: This is a
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          2  small issue. The issue is you do, as I have said

          3  many times, a wonderful job, with the folks who are

          4  working in Housing Court. We love Ms. Thompson. But

          5  the issue is sometimes when clients are getting

          6  checks to pay the rent, it's late, and sometimes

          7  it's late because you have the wrong address. And

          8  sometimes you have the wrong address for like five

          9  months. So, it's a computer glitche, but I just

         10  think you need more oversight, because so much time

         11  on your staff, court staff, my staff, and client

         12  mental health. So, it's just something to look at.

         13                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It might just

         15  save money all around.

         16                 I don't know if that's only a few

         17  cases or it's systemwide, but once the problem has

         18  been identified, you know, because you're a good

         19  leader, it shouldn't take five months to fix.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I agree. We will

         21  look into that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Thank you for the

         24  suggestion.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, I know
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          2  Chair DeBlasio had a number of questions, so what I

          3  would request of you, if it's okay, is if he could

          4  submit those questions in writing to you and provide

          5  answers to him and the Committee?

          6                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: Absolutely.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. I think

          8  we're going to adjourn this a little early, and if

          9  we have any other questions between now and budget

         10  adoption, I assume you'll be receptive to answering

         11  them?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DOAR: I'm available.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes.

         15                 We will take approximately a

         16  15-minute break and we will convene at approximately

         17  1:30 with the Administration for Children's

         18  Services, and we have scheduled public testimony at

         19  the end of the testimony of Administration for

         20  Children's Services, so if anybody from the public

         21  would like to testify, you must sign up with one of

         22  the sergeant-at-arms and fill out a slip. We're now

         23  in recess until 1:30.

         24                 Recess taken. Time noted 1:15 p.m.

         25                 Resumed at 1:30 p.m.)
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good afternoon.

          3  The Finance Committee is back in session. I'm David

          4  Weprin. I Chair the Finance Committee, and this

          5  portion of the Finance Committee hearing will be

          6  joint with the General Welfare Committee, chaired by

          7  Council Member Bill DeBlasio, as well as the Women's

          8  Issues Committee, chaired by Council Member Helen

          9  Sears, and we will hear of the Commissioner of the

         10  Administration for Children's Services, but before

         11  we hear from him I'm just going to turn it back to

         12  Chair DeBlasio.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         14  much, Chair Weprin. And, again, thank you for all

         15  your support of the work of the General Welfare

         16  Committee, and I want to thank my fellow Chair Helen

         17  Sears, with whom I have had the honor on working on

         18  many issues related to child care over the last

         19  couple of years.

         20                 Commissioner, I want to thank you and

         21  your team for being here. We look forward to your

         22  testimony. Unfortunately, for some of the time of

         23  this hearing I will be immediately next door because

         24  there is a major Land Use item for my district being

         25  debated by the Land Use Subcommittee, so please
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          2  forgive me if I step out.

          3                 But you will be more than ably

          4  handled by the two other chairs. But I also want to

          5  take this opportunity to say to you, Commissioner,

          6  and to ACS, this is a very good day for the people

          7  of New York, but a day that sometimes may feel as

          8  the beginning of something a little challenging for

          9  you, because Helen Diane Foster has joined the

         10  General Welfare Committee and you will find no one

         11  more substantive and more passionate in her

         12  advocacy, because she will ask tough questions, and

         13  get ready for them now, and we're really thrilled to

         14  have her, and as I mentioned earlier at the previous

         15  hearing, James Vacca. Two wonderful new additions of

         16  the General Welfare Committee. And with that, I turn

         17  it back to Chair Weprin. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, we'll turn

         19  it over to Chair Sears.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you, and

         21  welcome. I'm going to be very brief, because I know

         22  we all want to hear and it is a budget hearing

         23  actually. So, with that, I'm glad to see so many of

         24  the child care supporters here and with that, I want

         25  to thank my Co-chair and the Chair of the Finance
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          2  Committee.  I'm serving on two committees, so it's

          3  good to be able to do that in one day.

          4                 So, with that, thank you, again, and

          5  I will turn it back to Chair Weprin.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay,

          7  Commissioner, you have prepared testimony?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I do.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Proceed.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Thank you.

         11  Good afternoon, Chair Weprin, Chair DeBlasio, Chair

         12  Sears and Members of the Finance, General Welfare

         13  and Women's Issues Committees. I'm John Mattingly,

         14  Commissioner of the Administration for Children's

         15  Services.

         16                 Joining me here today are Susan

         17  Nuccio, my Deputy Commissioner for Financial

         18  Services and Melanie Hartzog, our Deputy

         19  Commissioner for Child Care and Head Start.

         20                 Thanks for the opportunity to discuss

         21  the Fiscal Year 2008 Executive Budget for ACS. Our

         22  Executive Budget provides for operating expenses of

         23  $2.7 billion, 865.9 million of which are City funds,

         24  and capital commitments of 35 million, of which 34.7

         25  are City funds.
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          2                 I'd like to highlight the key budget

          3  modifications since we talked at the Preliminary

          4  Budget hearing, and provide you all with an update

          5  on our progress in implementing a number of

          6  important child safety foster care initiatives, and

          7  our efforts to build a unified child care Head Start

          8  and UPK Child Development System for the City.

          9                 I'll also brief you a bit on improved

         10  outcomes for children, our foster care initiative

         11  and our efforts in that regard are, I can say, fully

         12  underway now.

         13                 First on child safety. As the

         14  Committee is aware, I think Children's Services

         15  continues to receive reports of child abuse and

         16  neglect at a significantly higher rate than in past

         17  years. To ensure that we have the full range of

         18  services needed to support families in need of help,

         19  the Fiscal Year 2008 budget includes an additional

         20  $6.8 million in City and State funds to support the

         21  creation of 1,000 additional preventive services

         22  slots.

         23                 Given the continued high rates of

         24  reporting of abuse and neglect, these additional

         25  slots will ensure that the City can meet the needs
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          2  of children and families, as we were able to

          3  increase the utilization rate for preventive

          4  services to 100 percent over the course of the past

          5  year.

          6                 In addition to the creation of those

          7  thousand additional slots, this budget also adds $9

          8  million in preventive service enhancement funds that

          9  ACS has made available to providers in the past.

         10                 This funding will continue to serve

         11  as an enhancement support to agencies and will also

         12  enable technical assistance for providers.

         13                 We are in the process of identifying

         14  providers to receive this money for the coming year,

         15  using essentially the same model that we used last

         16  year.

         17                 In a truly ground-breaking

         18  initiative, Children's Services has sought and

         19  received a waiver from the State Office of Children

         20  and Family Services to make preventive services

         21  funding available for nurse family partnerships. I

         22  also want to express personally our thanks to our

         23  new commissioner of OCFS, and to our administration

         24  in Albany to support our efforts to provide

         25  preventive services funding for nurse family
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          2  partnerships.

          3                 This program, as many of you know,

          4  provides home visits for first-time mothers, with a

          5  special emphasis on at-risk teenage mothers with

          6  economic challenges.

          7                 Women enrolled in the program are

          8  visited by a specially trained nurse at their home

          9  throughout their pregnancy and until their baby is

         10  two years of age.

         11                 The Department of Health and Mental

         12  Hygiene's targeted Citywide Initiative, one of five

         13  nurse family partnership sites in the City, focuses

         14  on very high-risk women, pregnant teens and women

         15  throughout the City who are in foster care, in

         16  homeless shelters, and in Rikers Island.

         17                 The Nurse Family Partnership is a

         18  national program designed by Dr. David Olds, a

         19  program that has shown to be effective in improving

         20  health-related outcomes and general social

         21  well-being for both children and families.

         22                 Through an intra-City agreement with

         23  DOHMH, this nationally famous model has now become

         24  incorporated into children's services, preventive

         25  services continuum and will serve as an intensive
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          2  support to teen mothers in foster care as well.

          3                 In addition to these investments in

          4  preventive services, ACS remains committed to an

          5  aggressive staff hiring plan in Child Protective and

          6  Family Court Legal Services. ACS continues to hire

          7  between 70 and 80 child protective specialists each

          8  month. The addition of this staff and our ongoing

          9  commitment to hiring will support us in our efforts

         10  to reduce caseloads, as our new staff continues to

         11  leave training units and take on a standard

         12  caseload.

         13                 We have also made some progress in

         14  increasing the number of lawyers in our Family Court

         15  Legal Services Division.

         16                 Over the course of the past year we

         17  have hired 93 additional attorneys. We are planning

         18  to add a class of 30 more in September and then a

         19  class of 14 every other month to keep pace with our

         20  staffing needs. We are hopeful that this level of

         21  hiring will enable us to reach the attorney caseload

         22  targets that we have set for ourselves.

         23                 In April, Children's Services

         24  released a comprehensive plan to restructure the

         25  foster care system and achieve better results for
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          2  children receiving foster care and preventive

          3  services.

          4                 This plan is focused on improving the

          5  results we achieve for children by providing more

          6  resources to serve children and families, by giving

          7  greater flexibility to those serving children and

          8  families. By holding the entire system more

          9  accountable for achieving results and by delinking

         10  funding from nights spent in foster care.

         11                 Since announcing our plan, ACS has

         12  held a series of meetings with our provider agencies

         13  in advance of their applications to participate in

         14  the first phase of improved outcomes.

         15                 Proposals for participation were due

         16  last week and I'm happy to say that 23 foster care

         17  providers and nine preventive agencies have applied

         18  for the first phase of improved outcomes for

         19  children.

         20                 We plan to announce the selected

         21  agencies in the beginning of June, and then expect

         22  to begin planning and implementation throughout the

         23  summer in partnership with some of these agencies.

         24                 Children Services has benefitted

         25  significantly from our providers' feedback and
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          2  thoughts, as well as feedback from the community at

          3  large.

          4                 As a result of these conversations,

          5  we have adjusted some elements of our financing

          6  proposal in response to their concerns that some

          7  foster care providers might benefit more or less

          8  than others.

          9                 We believe that their advice has

         10  strengthened the overall financial design of the

         11  proposal and we look forward to continuing our joint

         12  work together as we move forward implementation.

         13                 We would also like to update you on

         14  our efforts to staff the new positions created by

         15  improved outcomes, and to assure a successful

         16  transition for all affected staff.

         17                 To date, children services, along

         18  with DC 37, Local 371, the Office of Labor

         19  Relations, and the Department of Citywide

         20  Administrative Services, we have hosted a job fair

         21  for all provisional staff affected by the first

         22  phase. As a result of this fair, all provisional

         23  staff, as we projected, have received offers for

         24  other positions.

         25                 Children Services has also posted and
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          2  begun interviewing for the new positions created by

          3  improved outcomes for children, and are currently

          4  negotiating with the union around the titles for

          5  these new positions, and when these new positions

          6  will be offered to staff.

          7                 These conversations are part of

          8  broader negotiations we are having with the union on

          9  the overall implementation of our plan.

         10                 These discussions have I think been

         11  very productive, and we are committed to continuing

         12  our dialogue with the union over the coming months.

         13                 I'd also like to update you on one

         14  final child welfare initiative that we have

         15  undertaken over the course of the past year, to

         16  serve youth known to the child welfare system who

         17  have also begun to have juvenile justice

         18  involvement.

         19                 Our program, the Juvenile Justice

         20  Initiative, the first ever alternative to placement

         21  and after care program to use an evidence based

         22  model proven to improve outcomes for youth involved

         23  in the juvenile justice system.

         24                 The models used by JJI have reduced

         25  recidivism rates in other jurisdictions around the
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          2  country by 30 to 70 percent.

          3                 To date this program has served 125

          4  New York City youth just in this calendar year. The

          5  vast majority are served through our front-end

          6  diversion program which is offered in every borough,

          7  and we have seen a number of positive affects for

          8  the families who participated in the diversion

          9  program, including more effective supervision of

         10  youth, reduced truancy and youth making connections

         11  to pro social activities.

         12                 For the smaller number of youth who

         13  are participating in the program as a form of after

         14  care services, we have seen a reduction in length of

         15  stay and a much more supportive reentry into their

         16  home communities.

         17                 The after care component of this

         18  initiative is currently only in the Bronx and we are

         19  looking forward to expanding our pilot to the other

         20  boroughs in the future.

         21                 The Juvenile Justice Initiative's

         22  capacity is approximately 355 youth per year.

         23                 I'd also now like to update the

         24  Committees on Children Services progress on the

         25  implementation of our strategic plan for early
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          2  childhood education.

          3                 This plan represents a historic

          4  commitment to strengthen and improve early care and

          5  education services in New York City. We expect that

          6  as the plan is fully implemented, New York City's

          7  families will benefit from a stronger and a more

          8  comprehensive early childhood care and education

          9  system.

         10                 We would like to first bring you

         11  up-to-date on the work that ACS, the Department of

         12  Education, DYCD and the Office of the Mayor are

         13  doing to improve early child care and education

         14  services for families in New York City.

         15                 This effort has included the creation

         16  of a mayoral early child care and education

         17  committee.

         18                 As part of this coordinated effort,

         19  the City is moving to fund care for four-year-olds

         20  through Head Start and universal pre-kindergarten.

         21  UPK. This design means that child care funding will

         22  provide wrap-around care to create a full day,

         23  full-year program for all four-year-olds in the City

         24  whose families desire it.

         25                 Such program collaboration and
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          2  maximization of resources increases ACS ability to

          3  expand services to infants and toddlers who, as you

          4  know, are currently greatly underserved by the

          5  City's system.

          6                 The Department of Education has just

          7  released a request for proposal for the expansion of

          8  UPK services, and we are urging that all providers

          9  carefully consider this opportunity if they want to

         10  continue to serve four year olds.

         11                 ACS is also working with DYCD to

         12  coordinate OST, Out of School Time, care for

         13  low-income working families with school-aged

         14  children.

         15                 OST programs provide quality after

         16  school year-round academic support and recreational

         17  activities throughout the City. Our continuing goal

         18  is to ensure that all low-income families utilize

         19  OST programs for school aged children as they wish

         20  and need.

         21                 As part of a long-term effort to

         22  improve the quality of care throughout the overall

         23  system, children services and the Department of

         24  Education in partnership with Child Care and Head

         25  Start Programs establish quality standards and a
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          2  single performance measurement tool across all

          3  publicly funded contracted child care programs.

          4                 Both agencies will utilize this

          5  performance tool to better target quality

          6  enhancement training and technical assistance

          7  programs, and this summer and fall, Teachers College

          8  at Columbia University will run a pilot test of the

          9  performance measurement system.

         10                 New York City is the first City in

         11  the nation to develop a common performance

         12  measurement system across all early care and

         13  education settings, and I'd like to put everyone on

         14  notice, however, that as happened when we began to

         15  address quality standards in foster care, ACS is

         16  serious about our commitment to each child served by

         17  our system and their families, and that every child

         18  will receive the quality of care that every child

         19  deserves.

         20                 As the Committee is also aware, as

         21  the Committees are also aware, ACS has launched a

         22  full enrollment initiative in child care. This

         23  includes community-based enrollment, making it

         24  easier for parents to enroll their children locally,

         25  along with a simplified child care application form.
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          2  As a result, parents from the Bronx, Queens and

          3  Manhattan can now enroll their children at

          4  participating local child care centers, instead of

          5  having to go to centralized locations. The

          6  initiative will begin in Brooklyn in Staten Island

          7  this June. Most importantly, I think, more than

          8  1,000 additional children, 1,000 additional children

          9  have been served as a result of the hard work of the

         10  individual child care centers and the children

         11  services resource area centers over the course of

         12  the past year.

         13                 Shortly, ACS will release a report

         14  explaining the purpose and methodology of its

         15  community needs analysis.

         16                 This analysis helps to explain the

         17  reasons why aligning early care and education

         18  services according to community need, serves to

         19  benefit eligible children and families by maximizing

         20  and ensuring an equitable distribution of public

         21  resources.

         22                 To further promote full enrollment,

         23  ACS is also developing new administrative procedures

         24  to reimburse child care providers according to

         25  enrollment.
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          2                 By capitalizing on the use of every

          3  available slot, the system will be able to make care

          4  available where it is most needed by families

          5  throughout the City.

          6                 At Children Services, we take our

          7  responsibility seriously to protect at-risk and

          8  abused children and to provide high-quality child

          9  development services to families in New York City.

         10                 Thanks for allowing me to discuss

         11  these important issues with you this afternoon, and

         12  I welcome any questions the Committees may have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         14  Commissioner. We've been joined by a number of

         15  colleagues since the last round of introductions. We

         16  have Council Member Charles Barron from Brooklyn,

         17  Council Member Letitia James from Brooklyn, Council

         18  Member Dennis Gallagher from Queens, and we've

         19  already acknowledged Council Member Helen Foster

         20  from the Bronx.

         21                 Commissioner, based on ACS's

         22  Rethinking Child Care document, there is a lack of

         23  child care services available for younger children

         24  ages zero to two, in order for a child care center

         25  to serve younger children, the center may need to
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          2  make costly additions, changes to the physical

          3  building, such as adding a sink to a classroom, for

          4  example.

          5                 Is there any funding available for

          6  centers to convert their facilities to serve younger

          7  children, and if so, how much?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Thank you.

          9  I'll ask Melanie Hartzog, or Deputy for Child Care

         10  and Head Start, to answer that.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Hi. I'm

         12  Melanie Hartzog, Deputy Commissioner for Child Care

         13  and Head Start. When an agency submits to us a

         14  proposal to age down a classroom or multiple

         15  classrooms, we assess that proposal. If it includes

         16  the need for start-up costs, for those that you've

         17  just mentioned, we do provide that funding for it.

         18                 There is not a separate pot of money,

         19  it's part of our overall assessment of their

         20  proposal.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And how can

         22  centers take advantage of that funding? Is there an

         23  application process? Did they contact one person in

         24  your office?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: As far
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          2  as the full enrollment effort, each time we meet

          3  with programs and they submit to us or request that

          4  they'd like to age down, that proposal is submitted

          5  to both the Associate Commissioner for Eligibility

          6  and Enrollment, Kay Hendon, as well as the Assistant

          7  Commissioner for Contracted Child Care Programs, and

          8  both of their teams assess that proposal.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         10                 At the March 15th Preliminary Budget

         11  hearing, Commissioner Mattingly testified that the

         12  Administration for Children's Services will begin

         13  distributing 200 laptops in two field offices in

         14  April before expanding it Citywide. Were there 200

         15  laptops distributed in April? And if so, in which

         16  field offices, and does this mean that every CPS

         17  worker in those two field offices had access to a

         18  laptop?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'm sorry,

         20  I'm not aware as to whether they had actually been

         21  delivered in April or not, but I could certainly get

         22  back to you about it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, so you

         24  don't really know how it's been working yet?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We have
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          2  already tested for the course of a year the use of

          3  these laptops. We're now expanding the pilot and we

          4  turned to the use of a laptop as opposed to a couple

          5  of other options because it was so successfully used

          6  by staff. So, we need to expand the use of it and

          7  see how that works but with a much broader number of

          8  staff.

          9                 But we've already tested it and we're

         10  convinced it's in general the best way to go. But

         11  we'll see in the next six months what the larger

         12  group of staff feel about it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So you're

         14  expanding it to other field offices now?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Regarding

         17  the special immigrant juvenile status, at the

         18  Immigration Committee hearing in June of '06, you

         19  stated that you would provide the Council with ACS's

         20  budget for SIJS cases, such as legal filing fees;

         21  please provide that. Can you give us an update on

         22  that?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: The budget

         24  that we have established in this coming year is

         25  150,000. We've also I believe had another full

                                                            74

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  hearing on SIJS since that time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. And would

          4  ACS consider hiring a small staff to work with Mark

          5  Lewis, Director of Immigration Services, for ACS, to

          6  help in identifying and coordinating the filings for

          7  children, who may be eligible for SIJS or other

          8  immigration assistance?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We actually

         10  are in the process of bringing on a second person

         11  now, and we would certainly consider expanding Mark

         12  Lewis's office in general, not simply for SIJS, but

         13  for all other immigration matters. As you can

         14  imagine, there is a great deal of interest, concern

         15  and need in ACS regarding our impact on immigrant

         16  families and communities. So, we're already in the

         17  process of expanding.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, very good.

         19  And what efforts is ACS making to ensure that all

         20  ACS attorneys and caseworkers, including those at

         21  foster care agencies under contract with ACS, are

         22  trained to identify when a child may need

         23  immigration assistance?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Beyond my

         25  sending out directly from my office, under my
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          2  signature of full scale policy to the foster care

          3  agencies, our attorneys are all being trained now

          4  either in before they start work with us or after

          5  they have come on with us, about the need to keep

          6  this issue prominently in mind as we start any given

          7  case.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, good.

          9                 I'm going to turn it over to my

         10  Co-chair Helen Sears.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Hi.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: I have just a few

         15  questions, because I know we do have some questions

         16  from colleagues.

         17                 In your testimony you talked about

         18  adding attorneys to the Family Court, Legal

         19  Services, and the way I look at it, that you are

         20  adding 56, a total that would after September would

         21  start every other month, you would add 14. In

         22  September you were adding 30, and 93 are already

         23  there, which is a total of 179. So, the question is,

         24  what was the number that you had existed prior to

         25  what I've calculated?
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          2                 And since you go over into new budget

          3  year, when you do the alternate, if that's going to

          4  continue every other month, you go into September;

          5  so my question is what were the numbers that you had

          6  prior to this total of 179? And what is your budget

          7  for legal staff?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We have 210

          9  attorneys in the 2007 budget. We have 235 in Fiscal

         10  Year '08 in the budget. We currently have 179

         11  attorneys on payroll, as of April. And it is our

         12  intention to get to the point where as the cases

         13  have increased, we will get to the national standard

         14  of between 50 and 60 cases per attorney in Family

         15  Court. And we'll keep building our team until we get

         16  to that point.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: So, in doing the

         18  '08 budget, are you calculating any of that

         19  happening, or are you dealing specifically with what

         20  you state you wish to add? Do you have the

         21  flexibility to add to that in your budget?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: As we go

         23  forward, what we've done is project what is actually

         24  going -- how many people we will be bringing on and

         25  what our attrition will be. So, the same thing as
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          2  with the CPS workers. However, if attrition goes up,

          3  or if we find the need because caseloads have

          4  continued to rise, we will continue to hire and, you

          5  know, I have been in ongoing discussions with OMB

          6  about that, and they share the commitment that we

          7  have that Family Court Legal Services' attorneys and

          8  CPS workers are, the numbers are driven by the need,

          9  nothing else.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: That's good. I'm

         11  glad to hear that.

         12                 What is the caseload level now per

         13  attorney? Because you said you hoped to get to 50,

         14  60 cases per attorney?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I don't have

         16  it now.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: And actually that

         18  may lead to --

         19                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We are about

         20  70.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: About 70.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: So what is the

         24  time frame? In other words, how much time, and I

         25  know it's hard to determine, but what is allowable
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          2  with each case, and the time the attorney has to

          3  spend with that?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, much

          5  depends on the activity in the Family Court

          6  regarding a given case. So, there is no single way

          7  you can estimate the hours that it will take in a

          8  given case.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: I understand that.

         10  That's why I'm asking. Some case could take very

         11  long, which is reducing the time --

         12                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: But in

         13  general 60 is a national standard and that is what

         14  we are aiming for.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: All right.

         16                 That provider's fee of $17, and the

         17  agency used to pick up a part of that, is there any

         18  thought of picking it up again?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Hi.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: You hear this

         21  question every time that we have a meeting, but, you

         22  know, it's several thousand a year and that's a big

         23  chunk for these providers to pay.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: It is.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: And I understand

                                                            79

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  administrative cost, but that is something that I

          3  think really needs to be looked at. If you are and

          4  are not planning on doing anything about it, is it

          5  reflected in the '08 budget?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: So at

          7  our last hearing on family child care on April 26th

          8  we talked about the fact that we've started a family

          9  child care standards work group. And as part of that

         10  work group, we first started with networks, and we

         11  are now involving actual family child care homes as

         12  part of that.

         13                 One of the issues that that group

         14  will tackle is looking at this issue of the

         15  administrative rate and what it should be, and if at

         16  all it should be linked to networks into the homes.

         17  So that process is happening. There is no additional

         18  funding in our budget for Fiscal Year '08 to address

         19  the 17.06.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: So then the

         21  providers don't see any relief in that for '08, and

         22  whether they see any relief in '09 is also

         23  questionable, because I understand the complexities

         24  of what you're doing. But at the same time, the

         25  providers are really having a burden that at one
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          2  time some of it was really subsidized by your

          3  agency.

          4                 So, I think that that is a big amount

          5  for these providers to assume. It has to cut into

          6  something, is the bottom line. The bottom line is

          7  that cost has to cut into whatever it is that is

          8  essential to them.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I will say

         10  that I think the only way out of the continuing

         11  disagreement that various people in City government

         12  and among the providers have about this is for us to

         13  set very clear standards that lead to a fair

         14  reimbursement to the networks and to the families

         15  involved, and that we then hold everyone accountable

         16  for those standards being met. It seems to me that

         17  network family care is a valuable part of the entire

         18  network of early child care and education in this

         19  City, and we do have a plan by which we can try to

         20  deal with the differing opinions about this by

         21  bringing everyone together and establishing clearcut

         22  standards that then relate to the reimbursement that

         23  the networks get. That's the only way I can see

         24  through this sort of -- it's been very hard to deal

         25  with this issue because of the various parties
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          2  involved and we'll have to work it through, through

          3  the standards I think.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: While those

          5  considerations are going on, and I've said it

          6  before, so I may be repeating myself, that the fact

          7  is that over 50 percent of the households are women,

          8  and they are the single providers and they are using

          9  day care and we keep advocating for more slots. And

         10  those that are not single heads of households, they

         11  are working out of economic necessity, and just

         12  balancing an act economically within the family, and

         13  I think that needs to get into that consideration

         14  because we're asking them to add to that economy and

         15  at the same time it's almost a punitive measure that

         16  this has stopped. So, I really urge you that that

         17  should be in the considerations.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It will be.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: All right. Thank

         20  you very much.

         21                 With that I'll stop. I will come

         22  back, but we do have some questions.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We've been joined

         24  by Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito. Welcome.

         25  And the next questioner is Council Member Charles
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          2  Barron.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

          4  much, to all the Chairs involved, particularly my

          5  chair, who stands out higher amongst the others,

          6  because we're on the same committee, and that is

          7  Council Member Helen Sears. We accept your company,

          8  being with us at our hearing.

          9                 But I just wanted to -- $2.7 billion,

         10  and I think, what, 723 million, or something like

         11  that, is for child care roughly, and how many

         12  children that are not being serviced, or that you

         13  still have on the list, 40 something thousand, or do

         14  you know the number, in spite of the fact that it's

         15  720 some odd million, $2.7 billion budget, and $59

         16  billion City budget, a $5.3 billion surplus, and

         17  children are still not being serviced. I'm just

         18  concerned about that.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: I can

         20  tell you that the number of children under six

         21  eligible for subsidized care at 200 percent of

         22  poverty is about 345,000. Our capacity, Head Start,

         23  contracted child care and vouchers meets about 27

         24  percent of that need.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Twenty-seven
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          2  percent. So, what is the raw number of those perhaps

          3  that are on the list, not the percentage, but just

          4  the raw number that are not being serviced that are

          5  on the list, but need to be serviced, if you could

          6  do the math?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: She has a

          8  computer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Good.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG:

         11  Two-hundred and fifty-two thousand.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Not being

         13  served.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: That's

         15  right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: That's not the

         17  best investment. You know, wow. $2.7 billion budget,

         18  and 200 some odd thousand are not being serviced.

         19                 So, what kind of numbers do you need

         20  to service all of our children? What kind of money

         21  would you need?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: I really

         23  don't have that kind of estimate to give you today.

         24  You're asking me how much would it cost to serve the

         25  total number of eligible children.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: To serve all

          3  of the children that are in need.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Right. I

          5  don't have that kind of number on me --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You know why

          7  I'm asking you that? Because if we don't get it this

          8  time, I don't know how the economy flips, you know,

          9  we have a stock market-driven economy and it's

         10  cyclical, so we never know, you know, they're always

         11  talking about a boom, but the boom never resounds,

         12  never makes it to the -- what do you call the sounds

         13  when they vibrate, what is it? The vibrations of the

         14  boom doesn't reach the neighborhoods and all the

         15  children that it needs to reach, that's why I think

         16  it's very, very important that we look at that. And

         17  with the 1,000 slots, you said there will be a

         18  savings in foster care, correct? Once you get the

         19  6.8 million.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: In

         21  preventive, yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: In preventive,

         23  right. How much?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It's hard to

         25  be sure because of the number of reports leading to
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          2  increases in the number of children coming into

          3  care. However, as part of this 1,000 additional

          4  slots, we have an agreement with OMB that we will

          5  be, in fact, developing specific projections of

          6  savings that we are willing to be held accountable

          7  for as we move forward into the years. That was the

          8  only basis on which we could get that --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So right now

         10  there is no projections, there is no idea rough?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We have

         12  projections of the number of children who come into

         13  foster care without those 1,000 new slots. We

         14  offered them to OMB and they are still working with

         15  us to determine precisely how we're going to make

         16  sure that those numbers are accurate. But we do in

         17  fact have projections, of course. Do I have them

         18  here with me? No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, that's

         20  what I was asking. You don't have the projections

         21  with you?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You're working

         24  with DC 37's Local 371 on some things, and I know

         25  this might not be budget impacting but what about
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          2  the 650 some odd workers with 500 slots and now

          3  people have to have bachelor's degrees for work that

          4  they --

          5                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Master's

          6  degrees. Yes, we're in fact right now continuing

          7  negotiations with 371 and I think we made

          8  substantial progress. Not everything has been agreed

          9  to, but we have, in fact, as I told the Council we

         10  would, thought through carefully many of the

         11  positions that we are planning as part of the new

         12  effort Improved Outcomes, and have come to agreement

         13  with the union on most of them.

         14                 You will recall that the 650 is over

         15  a year away, and that we have begun the process of

         16  hiring up, so we will be in a much, everyone we

         17  believe as has happened with the provisionals, most

         18  recently the 90 some, we believe everyone is going

         19  to land on their feet who wants a slot, who wants to

         20  continue to work with us, because of the

         21  availability of other positions and new ones as

         22  well.

         23                 But I'm happy to report that we have

         24  been making substantial progress on this with the

         25  union.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And you're

          3  meeting with the union on it?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: What about the

          6  178 million I think it is for Head Start, 178

          7  million for Head Start.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: That's what

          9  the grant from the federal government is.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right. Because

         11  I know I speak to a lot of Head Start providers, and

         12  they're having a lot of issues and problems, and day

         13  care is bad, you know, on one level, now Head Start

         14  is under attack. So, what's the status of Head

         15  Start? Is that adequate funding? Is there other

         16  things that we need to do around Head Start to

         17  assure that we have quality Head Start services.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: The federal

         19  government in the last six years has focused very

         20  heavily on bringing down the resources available to

         21  provide Head Start, however successful it has been

         22  for the last 30 years, and has not let up on that

         23  effort.

         24                 However, the new Congress we believe

         25  is going to be much more interested in supporting

                                                            88

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  Head Start. The State, of course, has never provided

          3  support for Head Start, so we have had to continue

          4  on alone here in the City putting up additional City

          5  funds but there is no way we can continue to do that

          6  or increase that as we move forward. We've got to

          7  have the federal government begin again to fully

          8  fund Head Start.

          9                 So, we have, I think ahead of us in

         10  the coming year, some continuing challenges, but I'm

         11  more hopeful than I was a year ago.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Just getting

         13  back to the slots real quick, what is the estimate

         14  of the number of staff that are going to obtain

         15  these new slots that you were talking about prior,

         16  prior question about the staff being --

         17                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: The

         18  preventive spots?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right. Do you

         20  have a number?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It depends

         22  on, are you speaking of the preventive spots? They

         23  will be provided by private agencies, those

         24  services.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: If I may, I think
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          2  what the Council member is speaking about was those

          3  additional attorneys that you were going to the

          4  family --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: No, no. The

          6  slots.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: He's not talking

          8  about that, okay. I must have missed the comment.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: The

         10  transition, employees that are being laid off or

         11  transitioned or the ones that everybody will have a

         12  slot, and don't have to worry; what number are we

         13  at? Any guarantees? What numbers?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, there

         15  are 650 case management positions that by July 1st

         16  of next year will no longer be funded. Those 650

         17  people will, beginning now with the new positions,

         18  you know, we have 500 new ones being posted, will

         19  be, have been encouraged to apply for those

         20  positions, and will, based on our early projections,

         21  will in fact get many of them.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: In addition to

         23  that, how many will get and how many will be

         24  unemployed after the process is over?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: No one need
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          2  be unemployed when the process is over. If you're

          3  saying will we guarantee that you will have a

          4  particular position, we are not. As we did with the

          5  90 some provisionals just two weeks ago, had job

          6  fairs and opened up to them, to those who don't want

          7  or aren't interested in or are not chosen for one of

          8  the new slots, there will be positions in CPS made

          9  available to them, and we have agreements with other

         10  City agencies that other caseworker positions will

         11  be made available to them. That's why I said there

         12  is no need that someone lose their job.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So, the only

         14  way someone will lose their job is if they don't

         15  accept something that you offered them, it won't be

         16  because you will not offer them something.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: That's

         18  correct. Comparable.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And that

         20  something is not necessarily one of the slots.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: That's right.

         22  That's correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So, you have

         24  no idea of how many of those workers will actually

         25  get the slot.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: The new ones.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: The new ones.

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Probably half

          5  of the new slots, but it could well be more than

          6  that. Until we see, as we move forward, what this

          7  first hiring pattern looks like, I can't project for

          8  you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So, you're

         10  saying probably have, no one will be unemployed

         11  because they will be offered something, and it's

         12  probably half of the slots.

         13                 So, the union is working with you on

         14  this question?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And how do

         17  they feel about that?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, I think

         19  we've made substantial progress. You'll have to talk

         20  with them about how they feel about it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: What is your

         22  feeling of how they feel about it?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I think that

         24  they would be much happier were we not doing

         25  improved outcomes for children the way we are, but I
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          2  think within the context of our commitment to

          3  strengthen how we oversee these private agencies, we

          4  will come to what is a fair response for both the

          5  children and families we serve and our staff.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We've been joined

          8  by Council Member James Sanders, Jr., and Council

          9  Member Diana Reyna. Welcome.

         10                 The next questioner is Council Member

         11  Letitia James.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you. Just

         13  following up on Council Member Barron's question,

         14  isn't it true, was there a court decision recently

         15  with respect to the layoffs of these 650 workers?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: There was a

         17  rejection of the union's request for a TRO, but the

         18  Court and the union has requested, because of the

         19  success of our ongoing negotiations, a delay on the

         20  hearing regarding the overall issue.

         21                 So, there was an immediate hearing

         22  requesting a temporary restraining order that was

         23  turned down, the union was turned down on their

         24  request. We've continued to negotiate. We were due

         25  to have a hearing yesterday, the union asked for,
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          2  because of projects being made a two-week hiatus

          3  until we saw if we needed to have the hearing at

          4  all.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, there is a

          6  hearing that has basically been delayed, so that you

          7  and the union can resolve some of the issues, some

          8  of the issues that were brought to this hearing some

          9  time ago.

         10                 Now, Commissioner, Deputy

         11  Commissioner Hartzog talked a little bit about aging

         12  down in a 20 million pot of money, which goes to the

         13  issue that we raised, a number of Brooklyn Council

         14  members raised with respect to the 14 day care

         15  centers which were on an endangered list. And one of

         16  the things Council Member Reyna and I had talked

         17  about was the fact that there were a number of these

         18  day care centers which were on this endangered list

         19  wanted to go to a toddler program and they wanted to

         20  age down, and this $20 million is really a loan, and

         21  these organizations have to pay it back at some

         22  point in time; is that true?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: There was no,

         24  is no endangered list. There are child care centers

         25  throughout the City, especially in Brooklyn, that
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          2  have more than two that had, that had more than two

          3  vacant classrooms. In the context of, as Council

          4  Member Barron was asking, children and families who

          5  aren't being served who are eligible.

          6                 Our effort has been and will continue

          7  to be to squeeze those vacant classrooms, vacant

          8  slots, out of the system, not so that we can save

          9  money, but so we can use the resources for slots

         10  that will be filled with eligible children. So,

         11  that's the big picture.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: No, I

         13  understand.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: And I'll ask

         15  Melanie to speak to your question of the 20 --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: The $20

         17  million.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG:

         19  Actually, Council member, I'm not sure what you're

         20  referring to in terms of a $20 million pot.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Well, the

         22  question was asked earlier with respect to

         23  organizations that seek to age down. You said there

         24  are funds available for them to, for capital

         25  improvement in order to age down, and you said there
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          2  is funds available, and I believe you mentioned $20

          3  million; did I not hear you correctly?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: No, I

          5  did not state $20 million.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Are there funds

          7  available?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Funds

          9  are available as proposals are received and reviewed

         10  by our staff. And so we determine what those funds

         11  are and what's needed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And those funds

         13  that are available, is it a grant or is it a loan?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: It's

         15  neither. It's just giving them the amount of

         16  start-up funds they need to age down a classroom.

         17  It's put into their budgets and that's that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, they don't

         19  have to pay those funds back to the City of New

         20  York?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: No.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, again,

         23  going back, I call it the "endangered list," because

         24  two day care centers that are in my district and in

         25  Council Member Vann's district no longer receive ACS
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          2  dollars and now operate on a voucher program. Until

          3  the City Council and the Brooklyn Delegation stepped

          4  in, these other organizations, these other agencies,

          5  were endangered. Those are my words, you don't have

          6  to adopt them, but those are my words.

          7                 So, my question to you is, can we

          8  work with other centers, and the one day care center

          9  that continues to operate on a shoe string budget,

         10  trying to work with them to keep their doors open,

         11  which is Irving Place, have they submitted a plan to

         12  you to age down to a toddler program, and are those

         13  funds available to Irving Place?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Irving

         15  Place is operating as a private licensed child care

         16  center --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: They were

         18  forced to, yes.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: I

         20  understand that they are accepting voucher-based

         21  families, which is ACS funding provided to a family

         22  who chooses to go to that center. So, beyond that,

         23  it's their decision as a private licensed center to

         24  age down their capacity to serve younger children.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So the answer
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          2  to the question is, yes, they can apply for these

          3  funds?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: They do

          5  not have a contract with ACS.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So,

          7  organizations that are on this endangered list that

          8  will no longer be funded by ACS, such as Irving

          9  Place which was once funded by ACS, you cancelled

         10  the contract, if in fact these other agencies are in

         11  the same position, they are no longer eligible, yes?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: These 13

         13  programs, as the Commissioner stated are not on an

         14  endangered list, they were under-enrolled.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: So they

         17  have contracts with ACS.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So the answer

         19  to the question is, they are unfortunately, those

         20  that do not have a contract with ACS are not

         21  eligible for these funds, and if, in fact, you

         22  cancel the contract, they are no longer eligible,

         23  such as a case as Irving Place.

         24                 Moving on to the Governor. Governor

         25  Spitzer just announced last week some funds that I
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          2  think, I think he's going to recognize all union

          3  workers, recognizing their right to organize, which

          4  I totally support, there were some comments from the

          5  Bloomberg Administration, which basically opposed

          6  that, and I believe the statements, and I'm

          7  paraphrasing, were that it's going to result in less

          8  day care, less child care services in the City of

          9  New York.

         10                 What is your position with respect to

         11  the right to organize at child care centers?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Let me speak

         13  to that broadly first.

         14                 I think everyone, every employee

         15  should have the right to organize. I think we all --

         16  well, that's what I think. However, keep in mind

         17  that the State doesn't put a single penny into child

         18  care in the State. They pass along federal monies,

         19  and that's it. So, when the Governor announces that

         20  the State will now negotiate with potential -- with

         21  a potential union that represents potential

         22  employees, he is laying the groundwork for some sort

         23  of agreement, whatever it may turn out to be and

         24  whenever it does, which will simply lead to their

         25  passing along, unless they put money in which would
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          2  be a first time, would be passing along those

          3  increases in cost.

          4                 The question then becomes who is

          5  going to pay them? And will it come out of the poor

          6  families access to care, or will it come out of the

          7  City tax levy that will be discussed as we come upon

          8  it? But to simply say it is a good thing because we

          9  believe that people should have the chance to be

         10  represented, is I think not a full enough picture as

         11  we discuss this.

         12                 If the State were for the first time

         13  -- well, I won't say for the first time, I haven't

         14  been here that long, if the State were to ante up

         15  funds, that's another issue all together. But as

         16  we've seen over the years, that hasn't happened.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, the State

         18  ended their budget, I believe they're resolving some

         19  capital issues, so do you anticipate next year

         20  getting some additional funds from the State?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: For this? No.

         22  I have no indication that that will happen. None.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Do you

         24  anticipate getting funds next year for full day UPK

         25  from the State? I know they only fund half day.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'm not sure

          3  whether, to what extent, in what way continuing

          4  increases in UPK will flow to us. We are

          5  anticipating increased UPK resources and we will

          6  continue at a minimum to use them to help expand all

          7  child care in the City so that it meets a working

          8  parent's needs.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: It's my

         10  understanding that there is an RFP that was recently

         11  issued with respect to UPK, yes?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes. DOE.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: DOE. It's also

         14  my understanding that the deadline is Monday, and

         15  that it was recently issued. Would you consider the

         16  possibility, or is this something within DOE's

         17  purview to extend that deadline?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: This is DOE's

         19  decision, but my understanding, as of yesterday, was

         20  that it would be extended.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Do you know the

         22  date, the new date?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I do not.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you. With

         25  respect to Head Start, there were some questions
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          2  that were asked earlier with regards to Head Start,

          3  and I understand that we have additional funds

          4  concerning, additional funds coming into the system

          5  for Head Start. Again, being very parochial,

          6  Brooklyn, many programs will be funded, Head Start

          7  programs will be funded in the Borough of Brooklyn,

          8  and how will they be selected. My issue again is my

          9  district, which as you know, pockets of great wealth

         10  and small pockets of poverty.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: There is no

         12  additional funding coming from Head Start, with the

         13  exception of a COLA.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: A COLA

         15  increase.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: That's all we

         17  know of at this point.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: That $26

         19  million only represents, $26 million from the

         20  Preliminary to the Executive is a COLA increase, or

         21  it's programmatic?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: No, it's more

         23  complicated than that.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER NUCCIO: Yes--

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Please identify
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          2  yourself for the record.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER NUCCIO: Susan

          4  Nuccio, Deputy Commissioner of Financial Services at

          5  ACS.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER NUCCIO: What

          8  you're seeing, between one year and another, I think

          9  that's your question, between the '07 and the '08

         10  budget, is the fact that the '07 budget contains in

         11  it about $37 million for renovations, and that money

         12  rolls to the next fiscal year, if there is anything

         13  left, which there will be, as we continue to work on

         14  renovations.

         15                 So, our grant amount is about the

         16  same, it's that 178 that we talked about, so there

         17  is no additional Head Start funds.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: It's also my

         19  understanding that there was a transfer of money

         20  from ACS to DYCD, basically for OST. As you know in

         21  the City Council I am carrying an initiative, and I

         22  would hope the members present who are here support

         23  it, to provide you with an additional $15 million to

         24  support child care services in New York City. So, my

         25  question is, that $10 million that was transferred
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          2  from ACS to DYCD is primarily for OST, After School

          3  Programs?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Completely,

          5  yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Completely. So,

          7  as a result of that, how do we make up that

          8  shortfall, the $10 million?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, the

         10  children, the school-aged children, there was three

         11  years of transition, let's put it that way, but the

         12  school-aged children are now moving fully to DYCD,

         13  so the children are no longer being served, except

         14  in some voucher cases by ACS centers.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: So, the

         17  children move with the money.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, the $10

         19  million will be used specifically for ACS children,

         20  if you will? I hate that term, but children who

         21  would normally qualify?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes, this is

         23  ACS children, who in effect we are continuing to

         24  hold responsibility for and will be providing

         25  resources to DYCD as they, in fact, step up and take
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          2  care of them.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So the monies

          4  will track the children --

          5                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: That's right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: As opposed to

          7  the program? Yes?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: That's right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: My last

         10  question is in regard to preventive services. I see

         11  that in the Executive Budget it's $6.8 million to

         12  increase the number of preventive slots by 100.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: One-thousand?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: One-thousand,

         15  excuse me. How will these slots be allocated and --

         16  how will they be allocated and now many will be for

         17  contract agencies?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: They will all

         19  be for contract agencies. They will be allocated

         20  really on just two simple bases. First, now that we

         21  are at 100 percent of utilization of prevention, our

         22  field offices are providing child protective

         23  services, with whom we meet every week now in

         24  ChildStat, are direct pipelines into where the need

         25  is greatest. So, those places that have had waiting
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          2  lists for preventive will be the field offices that

          3  get the preventive slots.

          4                 In addition to that there are special

          5  need communities, especially communities, Spanish

          6  speaking and other immigrant communities that are

          7  underserved generally, even if they don't show

          8  immediately in the larger picture we will be

          9  providing some of those additional slots to those

         10  communities.

         11                 Queens, for example, has a very great

         12  need for Spanish speaking and Asian-American

         13  preventive services increases, so we'll be targeting

         14  some there.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Back to the

         16  Borough of Brooklyn, again, those 14 or 13 day care

         17  centers on the endangered list, the question is I

         18  understand you're hiring new staff to enhance

         19  outreach to public assistance, to the public

         20  assistance population, how many of those new staff

         21  members will be assigned to the Borough of Brooklyn,

         22  so that we can keep these 13 centers in place?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: They will be

         24  assigned primarily to the job centers so that they

         25  can help TANF recipients, public assistance
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          2  recipients, who are going into the work world, to

          3  link up with the centers, especially, that have

          4  vacancies, such as those in Brooklyn.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: So the idea

          7  will be that we'll be helping to steer more of those

          8  PA clients into child care centers.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And, again, and

         10  very, very last question, is the facilitator moment

         11  which is in the Bronx, which is supposed to roll

         12  out, when is it coming to Brooklyn?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: June.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: June, okay.

         15                 Again, 14 day care centers, a lot of

         16  them central Brooklyn, high needs, the CEO program,

         17  whatever that acronym stands for, identified high

         18  poverty, two day care centers, already closed, I

         19  mean just to me was completely outrageous. There are

         20  high needs there, you have a large Muslim population

         21  and a number of individuals that definitely need

         22  child care services and I would urge that you focus

         23  primarily in Central Brooklyn. And again, public

         24  housing in my district, which unfortunately is

         25  overshadowed by the million dollar brownstones.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Council

          4  member, I would add the good news that our Improved

          5  Outcomes for Children program for preventive

          6  services, we're not going to do preventive Citywide

          7  initially, we will be doing Improved Outcomes for

          8  Children first with Brooklyn preventive agencies.

          9  So, congratulations.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         11  Council member. I'm going to turn it back to Chair

         12  DeBlasio, who I believe has a series of questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         14  Chair Weprin.

         15                 Okay, let's start with child care.

         16  Let me just take a step back because unfortunately I

         17  was out of the room for part of the testimony. So, I

         18  just want to clarify. There was a discussion earlier

         19  about the number of children in need in the City,

         20  and I just want to make sure I understand what your

         21  working assumption is at this moment as an agency on

         22  how many children there are to be served that we're

         23  not yet reaching between UPK, ACS, child care, all

         24  the different methods we have at our disposal, Head

         25  Start, et cetera?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: So, the

          3  number that I stated was that there are 345,000

          4  children under six eligible at 200 percent of

          5  poverty for subsidized child care. That doesn't

          6  reflect need, it reflects the number of children

          7  eligible.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, children

          9  under six who meet the income standard.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: That's

         11  correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Can you then

         13  roughly break out of that, and that's the total pool

         14  eligible within which a number are being served, or

         15  are you saying that's the total pool not being

         16  served in any way?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: That's

         18  the total pool eligible.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. So, can

         20  you break out how many within that roughly are being

         21  served between your child care programs, Head Start,

         22  pre-k, et cetera?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG:

         24  Ninety-three thousand, and that includes contracted,

         25  center-based family child care networks and the
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          2  homes, voucher-based providers and Head Start.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And pre-k?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: No.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Not pre-k,

          6  okay. So, I'm going to just, work with me, I'm going

          7  to try to get the definition right. The areas that

          8  you directly relate to as an agency, 93,000 our of a

          9  pool of roughly 345. So, I'm trying to remember my

         10  memory from looking at the pre-k statistics. We had

         11  a meeting with Governor Spitzer a few weeks back and

         12  raised these issues, I'm trying to recall in my mind

         13  and I believe it was 40- or 45,000 is the total

         14  number being served right now.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Yes, I'm

         16  actually trying to get that number right now.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I appreciate

         18  that effort.

         19                 But in any event, even if you round

         20  off generously --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG:

         22  Forty-nine thousand.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Forty-nine

         24  thousand. Okay, so, 49,000 in pre-k, 93,000 in all

         25  of the pieces you described are ACS managed or
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          2  supervised, or overseen, however you want to say it,

          3  including Head Start, and I am not clear, because I

          4  know there's been a transition, obviously from HRA

          5  to ACS in certain services; are you separating the

          6  HRA piece still?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: No. That

          8  includes the public assistance population. Again,

          9  it's for children under six. As you know, we go all

         10  the way up to 13.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. So,

         12  rounding off, just for the purpose of simplicity,

         13  almost 145,000 are covered between ACS and DOE,

         14  meaning pre-k, to approximately 200,000 children who

         15  do meet the income eligibility standards and are

         16  under six?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: I just

         18  want to clarify, and my staff is reminding me,

         19  universal pre-k is universal, so it's not based on

         20  income eligibility.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Correct.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: So,

         23  presumably you could have universal pre-k slots

         24  going to a community where there are children served

         25  above 200 percent of poverty.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Your staff gets

          3  a gold star for something I should have figured out

          4  myself.

          5                 Okay, so let's take it back a step.

          6  So, less than 145,000. Obviously the number of kids

          7  are not within the income eligibility. We can't,

          8  therefore, exactly hone the figure, but we can say

          9  based on, and these broad numbers you're giving,

         10  200,000 or more kids under six who meet the income

         11  eligibility. And I want to say a thank you at the

         12  outset, because you're the agency doing the most to

         13  answer this problem, and you always have, and

         14  whatever you think of OST or anything else, I always

         15  like to remind people, I never heard complaints

         16  about the work ACS did in providing child care. I

         17  think you've always had a reputation for quality

         18  services, but it's evident that we have a huge need,

         19  and that's why the efforts to connect those in need

         20  to where the services are are such a challenge and

         21  we've had this conversation and Jennifer Johns

         22  Austin, and others, Linda Gibbs from the

         23  Administration, I know there is a concerted effort

         24  to resolve all of this. But I just wanted to say in

         25  this public dialogue, it's not for lack of kids who
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          2  need the services, and it's not for lack of your

          3  will to provide them in one form or fashion as an

          4  Administration, but we have having a substantial

          5  challenge in linking the people in need with where

          6  the services are.

          7                 And, so, I want to say at the outset,

          8  I think things like the Full Enrollment Initiative

          9  are crucial, I'm glad to see there is additional

         10  commitment. I'm thrilled that's coming to Brooklyn

         11  quickly. I think the effort that you're undertaking

         12  to reach out to public assistance recipients is

         13  extremely helpful. I think in general, and we've

         14  seen this on other fronts in this Committee, Helen

         15  Diane Foster will get to know the many, many topics

         16  we've covered where we talked about the role of

         17  outreach and proactivity in government like food

         18  stamps, for example, that our constant mission is to

         19  connect people to services in ways that ultimately

         20  help us get ahead of different social challenges and

         21  help us solve problems. There is no question that

         22  children who go through Head Start and many other

         23  child care experiences early benefit in many, many

         24  ways. Let alone the impact on families trying to

         25  sustain self-sufficiency.
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          2                 So, what I'm taking from this back

          3  and forth is, when we're trying to visualize the

          4  extent of our challenge, we should be thinking about

          5  a couple of hundred thousand kids yet to be served.

          6  That does not mean they haven't found some

          7  solutions. And you've been quick to say that before,

          8  I appreciate it --

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Family

         11  solutions, informal solutions, all sorts of --

         12  perhaps something related to their religious

         13  communities, all sorts of options, but there aren't

         14  enough. They're not affordable enough, they're not

         15  located necessarily in the right places. So, we

         16  should just constantly recognize, if anyone says to

         17  us, oh, you know, history has ended and there is not

         18  a problem anymore, that's not true. There's a

         19  substantial challenge, it's how we continue to get

         20  you the resources you need and connect the dots,

         21  which brings us to Brooklyn.

         22                 I will not use any catch phrases for

         23  the situation of Brooklyn. I think we had a number

         24  of centers that we were very concerned about. I

         25  think we had some communication issues. I think we
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          2  had a lot of things. I'm very pleased to say, after

          3  a lot of dialogue, we've made progress.

          4                 I hope you share the view that the

          5  cooperative process undertaken with the Brooklyn

          6  Delegation yielded some real results in terms of

          7  common efforts to try and help individual centers,

          8  try and create more accountability.

          9                 I commend all of you for having

         10  really helped some of these centers find positive

         11  solutions. I commend the centers for increasing

         12  their enrollments. The way I phrase the story today

         13  is the glass is more than half full, because I

         14  believe more than half of those original 13 or 14

         15  are now sufficiently stable that everyone agrees

         16  they have a light path forward, and full enrollment

         17  helps, and perhaps some of the other creative work

         18  being done with pre-k, et cetera, could be helpful

         19  as well.

         20                 What I don't understand, and I don't

         21  want to ask you to get into too much detail, but

         22  just let us understand the process going forward.

         23  There's three outstanding centers of that original

         24  group, I just need some clarity on the time line for

         25  resolving their request to age down, those being
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          2  Cleveland, Park Place and Roundtable, and my

          3  understanding is in each of those cases part of the

          4  solution they envisioned was to take their age limit

          5  down, that they needed your approval, and we're

          6  trying to understand, is that accurate and what's

          7  the time line for that being evaluated and for a

          8  decision being made?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Two of

         10  those approvals have been approved. The programs

         11  have not been notified as yet, but we're doing that

         12  this week.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We'll call the

         14  program X and program Y.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Right.

         16                 There is one program, Cleveland and

         17  Park Place.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Cleveland and

         19  Park Place. Continue.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: The

         21  other program, Roundtable, we are having another

         22  follow-up meeting with that program on site with

         23  Board representation to talk about their proposal

         24  for aging down, as well as some of the challenges

         25  they're having in getting to full enrollment.
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          2                 They still have at least two vacant

          3  classrooms.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right, so

          5  let's clarify. Once approved to age down, do you,

          6  therefore, I just want to ask it a different way, do

          7  you consider them stable and therefore safe for the

          8  immediate future, as we then develop additional

          9  support, or do you believe they would still be

         10  considered questionable in terms of retaining their

         11  current, unless other things changed immediately?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: It will

         13  be part of the full enrollment effort in Brooklyn.

         14  We expect all of our programs to be at full

         15  enrollment, and we will work with them to ensure

         16  they're at full enrollment.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. So, I'm

         18  going to take that as a glass half full answer that

         19  says, by getting your approval, the door is open for

         20  other positive approaches, and full enrollment is

         21  coming in, and your expectation would be, not your

         22  guarantee perhaps, but your expectation, they would

         23  find their way to longer term stability?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. Now, the
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          2  two you said were Cleveland --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Park

          4  Place.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Park Place. So,

          6  Roundtable, could you, again, within the context of

          7  this moment, tell us what you think is the path in

          8  that case?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: I cannot

         10  at this point. We have a meeting scheduled with that

         11  program. Again, on site with their board

         12  representation present, that's important to have

         13  governance there as well to talk about what the

         14  issues are and review their proposal again and then

         15  we will make an assessment. And, again, full

         16  disclosure, we will inform everyone of that

         17  decision.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. So, there

         19  is still time to resolve those issues obviously. My

         20  hope in every case, I think you've gained a lot by

         21  being flexible here, and I think full enrollment

         22  we've always believed is going to be a big step

         23  forward. So, my point to you would simply be to keep

         24  working with us to see if that additional piece of

         25  the equation doesn't change things for the better.
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          2  And I would hope in your meeting you're about to

          3  have with Roundtable, that we're looking for every

          4  way to work together to find a positive solution.

          5                 Now, bear with me one second.

          6                 Okay, let me now turn attention to --

          7  well, let me just state one response on a previous

          8  child care issue.

          9                 Commissioner, I appreciated your, I

         10  thought honest reaction to the question of what it

         11  means for the Governor to have signed the Executive

         12  Order related to organizing.

         13                 And I think a lot of us share the

         14  view that workers being organized is a net gain for

         15  society for a lot of reasons. You're absolutely

         16  within your rights to say where is the money coming

         17  from? And the way I look at it is we all have to put

         18  our shoulder to the wheel to help add resources for

         19  child care constantly, which by the way, we all can

         20  look you in the face and say we have a five and a

         21  half year record of doing that, which I would dare

         22  say I'm not sure every legislature in this country

         23  is focused to adding money to child care on a

         24  regular basis, so I'm proud that that's what we have

         25  done.
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          2                 I think I would not look at it as a

          3  problem that may not be surmountable because of some

          4  of the bad track record. I agree with you on some of

          5  that bad track record. I think we have to look at it

          6  as this is a new day, we're opening up a whole new

          7  chapter here, where home-based child care workers

          8  can be organized and we all have to find the

          9  resources to support that effort. The idea behind it

         10  in my view is to professionalize a whole class of

         11  workers so they can provide better service for kids

         12  so they can be part of a long-term solution to child

         13  care needs. Those numbers that we just talked about

         14  are still daunting, 200,000 or whatever it may be,

         15  so I think our mission with you is to see it as

         16  we're professionalizing, we're enhancing, we're

         17  getting better outcome for kids and families. We

         18  have to find support to go with it.

         19                 On the prevention front, you,

         20  thankfully, and we appreciate you and the Mayor for

         21  coming up with the 1,000 new slots. It's obvious

         22  from reports that you've given us that there was a

         23  crying need for additional prevention support. There

         24  were cases where you wanted families to go for

         25  prevention and didn't have the capacity. So, coming
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          2  up with 1,000 new slots is crucial. First, just

          3  explain to us how that's going to be allocated and

          4  how that's going to be worked day-to-day?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: They'll be

          6  allocated by slot, by community based on need,

          7  primarily general need in the community for

          8  CPS-related slots to protect children in their own

          9  home, and for special needs communities that have

         10  been underserved.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But just help

         12  us understand geographically, how will it relate to

         13  the current delineation around the City, the way you

         14  sort of spread out the resources around the City,

         15  how will this fit into that?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: As often

         17  happens, it may well be that some of the communities

         18  in the Bronx are the most underserved that we will

         19  turn to immediately. But it's until we take a fresh

         20  look at it, after the budget passes, I won't be in a

         21  position to say exactly where they're headed, with

         22  the exception of a few special needs communities.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes. Council

         24  Member Foster is prompting me in a good way, such

         25  as? I mean, we have heard from the providers, from
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          2  the folks who everyone agrees have done fantastic

          3  work on the ground in prevention, that even what you

          4  added to the budget, what we added to the budget,

          5  helpful though it was, did not reach adequately to

          6  some people with special needs kids, some of the

          7  older kids, could you just describe how you're

          8  targeting that to respond to where some needs are

          9  great?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: The primary

         11  target I don't want to be unclear about. The primary

         12  target will be those communities where the CPS field

         13  offices have attempted to keep a family together

         14  safely but got put on a waiting list because the

         15  preventive agencies serving those communities didn't

         16  have a slot available at that time. Then we had to,

         17  in each one of those cases we're scrambling around

         18  because we're hearing this every week in ChildStat,

         19  our preventive leadership team is able to intervene

         20  every week and figure out how to fix each of those

         21  situations, but this will allow us on a much broader

         22  basis to provide those slots. There will be 750

         23  general preventive and 200 FRP for substance abusing

         24  families.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Now, in every

                                                            122

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  budget process, you ask for what you ideally need,

          3  you get what you get and you keep working from

          4  there. I presume your actual need is much greater

          5  than 1,000 additional slots; is that accurate?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, let me

          7  put it this way: we also, by working together with

          8  OMB, have had some success on this, we also have

          9  looked at the length of service being provided to

         10  some families in preventive, and that length of

         11  service to me, from my experience, was longer than

         12  it typically is in preventive services around the

         13  country. So, the first thing we did was pull out

         14  some of the home-maker-related services, which do

         15  normally last much longer, and then asked the

         16  preventive agencies to look at all of their cases

         17  that have been opened for 18 months or more and look

         18  at the question of whether that family could be

         19  better served by a community-based agency or whether

         20  it wasn't time to set some goals and get moving

         21  toward closure of that case.

         22                 We've had some success in closing

         23  somewhat between ten and 20 percent of those older

         24  cases, and it seemed to us that we owed that to the

         25  City as a whole, otherwise you get in a position
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          2  where families simply are being cared for in a

          3  moderate way at best with periodic visits, and the

          4  slot is filled the whole time.

          5                 Keep in mind also that in our efforts

          6  to improve performance, what we've done historically

          7  is say that if the family gets referred back into

          8  the child protective system, that's a failure on the

          9  preventive agency's part for understandable reasons,

         10  but that then also encourages people to keep cases

         11  open longer than they might.

         12                 So, we expect to have more slots

         13  available from both ends, the thousand more, plus

         14  the squeezing of the cases that are overage, I

         15  think, and once we are able to do that in the course

         16  of the coming year, we'll be able to make a much

         17  more powerful case as to whether we need more

         18  preventive slots and how many and where.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Look, I

         20  appreciate the honesty and the intelligence of that

         21  response, and obviously every agency has asked to be

         22  as effective with its money as possible, that's part

         23  of justifying additional resources, I agree. And I

         24  agree with you we don't want cases just lingering

         25  that might not be best served by lingering.
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          2                 I do think by definition the need on

          3  prevention is greater, and we should keep pushing

          4  the question what's the optimal level? Because we

          5  all agree that when prevention works, it is

          6  incredibly more effective than anything we can do

          7  once a problem gets out of hand.

          8                 And, so, I will keep asking you as

          9  time progresses, what is that number that we really

         10  should move to? I think also the question of the

         11  size of the caseload, you know the Council put money

         12  where its mouth was, put money to reduce caseload

         13  levels for preventative services. I want to thank a

         14  number of providers who are here in the room. Give

         15  yourselves a round of applause for your good work.

         16                 (Applause.)

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: These are the

         18  folks who every day do the work of prevention and I

         19  think we have tremendous respect for the folks in

         20  your agency and your staff who do the work every day

         21  of protecting kids. But we all felt in the Council

         22  we needed to complement that by bringing down the

         23  caseload levels for those who do prevention, too.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: These folks

         25  are fabulous, and we're proud to be colleagues with
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          2  them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We all agree on

          4  that statement.

          5                 (Applause.)

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: My point to you

          7  simply is, and I'll say it as a statement, we are

          8  going to continue in this Council to fight for

          9  resources to keep those caseload levels low enough

         10  to be manageable for the preventative services

         11  folks, and I would ask the Administration to keep

         12  looking for any way to do that as well.

         13                 Now, you mentioned ChildStat a moment

         14  ago and you said in your testimony that you were

         15  concerned about the cases that were continuing over

         16  18 months. Again, we shared that concern. But I

         17  think what we always need to ask you since ChildStat

         18  is still a relatively new methodology, is what are

         19  you learning as you continue using this? What are

         20  you learning about where our problems and challenges

         21  may be, whether they be geographic, whether they be

         22  a type of service you provide, whether it be a

         23  budget problem, what have you learned from the

         24  experience?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: A couple of

                                                            126

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  things to add to our last discussion about this.

          3                 First, I think that the number one

          4  lesson that this community really has learned,

          5  through at least the leadership of its child

          6  protective system, is the enormous burden that has

          7  been carried by the front line staff at CPS

          8  especially, but throughout the agency, and

          9  protecting children, especially in the last 18

         10  months, when workers fresh out of training were

         11  getting ten, 11 cases a month that they had to

         12  investigate and protect children in and where they

         13  kept moving forward day-in and day-out, along with

         14  their supervisors and along with their managers, I

         15  think I have never seen anywhere at any time in my

         16  too lengthy career the kind of dedication and the

         17  kind of overwhelming demand that we have faced in

         18  the last 18 months. It's just been incredible.

         19                 Having said that, we also have

         20  learned a lot of lessons about how the work is being

         21  done well, but also can be done better. I would just

         22  highlight a few things today, some of which I may

         23  have mentioned before.

         24                 First, there is no question that we

         25  have allowed too many families to come to our
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          2  attention over the years, especially the last five

          3  years or so, repeatedly without insisting that

          4  behavior had to change. And if necessary, by going

          5  to court and asking the court to order that behavior

          6  to change. Some of the increasing demands on the

          7  court now are being made because of 100 to 150

          8  percent increases in the number of cases we are

          9  bringing into court and asking not for removal but

         10  for the court to order supervision of that case and

         11  order families to enter drug treatment, for example,

         12  for parents to enter drug treatment. To have

         13  somewhere between 20 and 30 percent of our cases

         14  with four prior reports without effective

         15  intervention or removal, I think is a lesson we have

         16  certainly learned now, and I think we have to pay

         17  increasingly attention to that. It places demands on

         18  the rest of the system, as I said regarding the

         19  court. But that's certainly one of the lessons we

         20  have learned.

         21                 Also very clear cut lessons about how

         22  we have managed the agency, so it's not that what

         23  we're learning is what workers could have done

         24  better. I think that's a big mistake. I think what

         25  we've learned is what the agency could have done
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          2  better in helping workers to do the work that only

          3  they can do.

          4                 We have had not enough clearcut

          5  policy that everyone knew about and could act on.

          6  For example, and this work is complicated, if a new

          7  baby is born to a family whose children are in

          8  foster care, what do we do about that?

          9                 It seems to us, from our experience,

         10  that simply letting that happen is not safe. That

         11  what we need to do is assess where the children who

         12  are in foster care are, in terms of their returning

         13  home safely, and whether an infant can be safe in a

         14  home when the other children are in foster care, and

         15  whether we should assume that we should at least go

         16  into court and ask for the court to add this infant

         17  to the family's case, even if we are just going to

         18  provide court-ordered supervision.

         19                 Those sort of details that were not

         20  clear to everybody in every foster care agency in

         21  the City are now becoming clear through our redoing

         22  them week after week. So, it's those sort of big

         23  picture lessons, and also practice-oriented lessons

         24  that are, I think helping us to get to the point

         25  where there is an agreement throughout the
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          2  organization about how this work can be done better.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I appreciate

          4  that answer, Commissioner. I appreciate the

          5  leadership you're showing and the way you phrased

          6  that. Because as you know, I've supported you in

          7  good times and bad, but sometimes I have criticized

          8  you for putting the cart before the horse a little

          9  bit, and it is so important to acknowledge that the

         10  folks who do the work, under such adverse

         11  circumstances, need the support and need the

         12  training, need the understanding of where the

         13  agency's policies are going. I appreciate the way

         14  you phrased your response about acknowledging what

         15  the agency could do more to help the folks who do

         16  the work, to better guide them to change some of the

         17  policies, change some of the approaches and to be

         18  more proactive. I think that last example you used

         19  is a very good one about seeing the outline of a

         20  continued or a recurring problem and getting ahead

         21  of it. So, I think that's a very much appreciated

         22  answer. In the same vein I thank you for your

         23  testimony, for I think the better approach you're

         24  taking now. I obviously want to see all the results,

         25  but the better approach you're taking in terms of
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          2  working through some of the issues on your

          3  organization, and particularly in terms of the

          4  provisional, I think we always want to give credit

          5  where credit is due, so I appreciate that progress

          6  very much.

          7                 Let's talk now about a related point,

          8  attrition. We always ask you this because we have to

          9  keep an eye on this situation. You said in the

         10  testimony you're obviously continuing to hire and

         11  making that sort of a given in the way you approach

         12  things, do you think there is more we can do to

         13  reduce the attrition problem over time?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Oh, sure. And

         15  in fact, there are a number of initiatives underway

         16  inside the agency, but as I said before and I think

         17  it's the key question, and I think that we will all

         18  see this in the coming six months, the caseloads,

         19  that the demand on workers is what drives attrition

         20  first and foremost. It's not the only thing, but it

         21  is the first thing. And if you can't fix that, you

         22  will have trouble fixing attrition. And we are

         23  turning the corner now, the caseloads, the pending

         24  rates we want to be at five are either below or just

         25  above five. The caseload sizes, the caseloads have
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          2  been coming down. The steady input of new workers

          3  has really helped us build better teams, so that

          4  people are not always trying to cover, uncover

          5  caseloads when workers leave us.

          6                 You can feel it in ChildStat every

          7  week, because the report on caseloads is a central

          8  part of that, and I think by the end of the summer,

          9  at the latest, we will see that we finally turned

         10  the corner on this issue.

         11                 We are also initiating a systemwide,

         12  agencywide complete review of how we recruit,

         13  assess, hire and train all of our front-line

         14  caseworkers, and we will, as part of that, have

         15  workers from all levels of the organization take

         16  part in that process of redesign.

         17                 We've also in field offices

         18  throughout the City, and there are different

         19  examples in different field offices, focused

         20  attention on the question of how to build resilience

         21  among workers who have to see things that you and I

         22  everyday would not want to have to see on our daily

         23  work schedule, and I think we're making real

         24  progress with that. That's on a smaller scale

         25  because you need to do that at the level of the work
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          2  team and grow out from the work team.

          3                 So, much is underway. I think that if

          4  you spoke to our front-line workers in the field

          5  offices tomorrow, you'd find a different feeling

          6  than a year ago, but we're not where we need to be

          7  in the sense of people feeling like they are pulling

          8  together with an organization that believes in them

          9  and what they are doing, and that what we expect is

         10  strengthening families and protecting children,

         11  rather than doing the work of an organization.

         12                 So, we have a ways to go, but I think

         13  we are making real progress.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I

         15  appreciate that answer as well.

         16                 Now, let me just ask you a couple of

         17  quick facts. I know a couple of my colleagues have

         18  other questions before we wrap up, so I'll do this

         19  real quick.

         20                 The current caseload ratio, workers

         21  number of cases ratio, I know your goal is to get it

         22  to 12. At point in one of your recent hearings it

         23  seemed to move back upward for a period of time.

         24  What are your system-wide averages right now?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: 15.8.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And your goal

          3  is to still get that to 12; am I right?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

          6                 What is the highest you're finding

          7  anywhere in any of your offices?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We still

          9  have, I would say four, maybe five workers, who are

         10  above 30. But the vast majority are in the range of

         11  ten to 25.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I understand

         13  different cases are different. I do feel a little

         14  concerned. We have raised this point a lot of times.

         15  It sounds like, honestly, the attrition problem is

         16  bigger than maybe you're -- I'm not saying you're

         17  not telling us the truth, I'm saying maybe you're

         18  being a little rosy about the extent of the problem.

         19  If you've been trying to get to 12 this consistently

         20  for over a year now, and had additional resources,

         21  substantial resources put in, but you're having this

         22  much trouble getting down to 12 and you have some

         23  25, 30, I mean are we honestly putting what we need

         24  in to get down to 12 in any kind of real time?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I think there
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          2  is no question about it. It is true that we

          3  anticipated -- it really goes back all the way

          4  really to last May, when we had turned the corner

          5  the first time, and our caseloads were turning back

          6  around through the end of April, but the new policy

          7  by which DOE began to make reports to us, caused the

          8  reports to go up to an all-time high again.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: It was a good

         10  thing.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We spent the

         12  summer catching up to that and catching up to those

         13  cases that hadn't been closed on time. So, then when

         14  it happened again to us in the fall, especially

         15  October, November, again we're still struggling to

         16  get to where we need to be. And then in January, for

         17  reasons I think related to the fact that a lot of

         18  new people came in January a year ago and then faced

         19  this, because of that we lost a fair number of

         20  workers that we had not anticipated. Higher than

         21  normal, December, January, February. That now has

         22  slowed to a stop almost. So, the next time we talk,

         23  whenever that might be, either in the summer or in

         24  the fall, I think I will have much better data to

         25  report.
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          2                 I should also say, though, we look at

          3  this, every field office, every borough, every week

          4  by worker, not just by average. And you can see by

          5  borough, by field office, a large percentage of

          6  workers now who have cases under ten, and those who

          7  have cases under 15, and that's really, when you

          8  look at it graphically, it's really quite

          9  remarkable.

         10                 So, there's only a very small number

         11  and there are special circumstances usually. If you

         12  think about it, we have over 2,000 workers, there's

         13  got to be, to have four or five people above 30,

         14  there's something special going on there.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I appreciate

         16  that. I want to ask you if you can set any kind of

         17  even initial target in time by which you expect to

         18  get to an average of 12?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Oh, I think

         20  we'll be there in the fall, this fall.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. And can

         22  you just tell us your current attrition rate in

         23  terms of caseworkers, because we'll come back and

         24  ask you again down the line, I just want to see how

         25  things move. How can you typify it at this point?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It has been

          3  30 percent over the past 18 months.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And attorneys

          5  similar?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'm sorry, I

          7  don't have that right in front of me.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. All

          9  right. Thirty percent, and you believe you can get

         10  that number down substantially by the fall?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. Two

         13  related pieces on ChildStat -- I didn't ask you this

         14  question, is there any particular geography problem

         15  --

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: The attorneys

         17  turnover has been 21 percent.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Twenty-one

         19  percent, okay.

         20                 On ChildStat again, any particular

         21  geography problem? We've had issues in the past

         22  about certain offices and certain challenges. Do you

         23  see any particular office or offices that you find

         24  to be not on the level with the others?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

          3                 On Family Court and how it ties in,

          4  you mentioned earlier that obviously is still

          5  creating immense pressure on the system, the problem

          6  in Family Court. The increased reporting since

          7  Nixzmary Brown has added to that, although I believe

          8  the increased reporting is a very good thing, the

          9  increased coordination with DOE is a very good

         10  thing, but it's all putting additional pressure on.

         11  I'm just going to make an appeal we need you, we

         12  need the Mayor, we need the Administration, I think

         13  we were hopeful of some action in Albany, I remain

         14  hopeful, I've talked to the Governor personally and

         15  everyone else we've ever met in Albany on this

         16  point, obviously what we had hoped to be more of a

         17  focus on Family Court is now more of a focus on

         18  judicial salaries. That is not a winner for our

         19  children, that scenario, and we need more pressure

         20  put on Albany and we would welcome your help in

         21  that.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Anything that

         23  we can do we are doing and we're open to ideas.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We will

         25  collaborate with you some more on that, because our
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          2  window is closing on that.

          3                 A couple of final points. One on

          4  trying to deal with child abuse in terms of how

          5  different agencies work together.

          6                 We've talked before about the very

          7  tragic case from last year, Mia Ford, who died at

          8  Fox House, that was a question, in my mind, of the

          9  coordination between -- it was a DHS-funded

         10  facility, but had a lot to do, that case had a lot

         11  to do I think with the expectations and

         12  coordination, flow of information between ACS and

         13  DHS.

         14                 We've asked DHS what happened, why it

         15  happened. I don't think we in this Committee were

         16  satisfied with the answers. Even though I believe

         17  it's probably a well-run program, it gets back to

         18  some other things you've said in your testimony. If

         19  you know you have a teenage parent with a child in a

         20  shelter who has been out, in that case was out

         21  partying and drinking, you know, a number of warning

         22  bells should go off. I appreciated the way you

         23  phrased it earlier about looking for those kind of

         24  trends; do you think there is anything tangible

         25  that's changed since that tragedy to improve how you
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          2  and DHS work together, not just in DHS-run shelters,

          3  but in the other entities that DHS supports and

          4  subsidizes?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes, we've

          6  been, as you remember I'm sure, it began right

          7  before my arrival here. We have worked hard to beef

          8  up our sharing of information at the front door of

          9  DHS. And that is successful and underway. But since

         10  then, more recently within the past year, we have

         11  begun to share information across a much broader

         12  range, for example, families who are being denied

         13  shelter.

         14                 We have staff who are available in

         15  the entry points into shelter who can intervene

         16  quickly when there is a case that has a history, and

         17  there is a lot more that can be said, we'd be happy

         18  to share with you in greater detail, what the

         19  programmatic changes are, but I think our work with

         20  DHS has been improved almost month by month.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I

         22  appreciate that. I just want to make sure you remain

         23  focused on the places where we have some control but

         24  not as much control as our own shelters.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Right. Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: One point. I

          3  would just appreciate any comments, we've obviously

          4  seen an unfortunate spate of incidents in the last

          5  weeks of parents dumping their newborn children.

          6  That is not the typical kind of case you deal with,

          7  I know, but I'm just asking, is there any City

          8  effort underway to try and reiterate that there are

          9  safe havens, that there are options, particularly

         10  for these young mothers who may not know they have a

         11  choice.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: As best as I

         13  can tell from reviewing the sparse literature out

         14  there, it's probably not a question of knowledge,

         15  but what we need to be doing is making the public at

         16  large more aware of these kinds of situations, that

         17  they may see, even if the young parent herself is

         18  not willing to take any more positive action.

         19                 And we're trying to craft the right

         20  kind of message that can go into our "taking good

         21  care of your baby" messages that we have been

         22  putting out for the past 18 months that might help

         23  us with that some.

         24                 Right now for everyone the key

         25  message I'd like to get out is that those window
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          2  guards need to be in place, and need to be checked.

          3                 This is the time of year when, and

          4  this has happened three times since I've been here,

          5  children are bounding on the bed with an older sib

          6  and one of them goes out the window, and it's just

          7  incredible how quickly that can happen. So, those

          8  window guards are really very, very important in the

          9  City, and we've got to keep everybody listening to

         10  the fact that everyone, even if you had children

         11  visiting you as a grandmother and an aunt and uncle,

         12  you should be cleared about the need for those

         13  things because you turn away and your niece and

         14  nephew are playing in another room and all of a

         15  sudden there's a tragedy. So, that's the big message

         16  right now. In fact, I just did something on the

         17  radio about that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I appreciate

         19  that, and I think we have greater capacity of

         20  reaching people than we ever have and we need to do

         21  it and just keep encouraging you. I think you've

         22  done a great job in terms of getting an anti-child

         23  abuse message out. I think the point about a safe

         24  haven is very timely.

         25                 Lastly, one related point, I just
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          2  want to thank you, your staff, and we have been

          3  working together on helping the Nurse Family

          4  Partnership Program reach young women in the foster

          5  care system, and we really do appreciate that

          6  collaboration.

          7                 And lastly, just saying on youth

          8  aging out of foster care, I know Council Member

          9  Foster had this question, I'll just ask it quickly.

         10  We're just concerned about the extent to which those

         11  people are ending up homeless or a threat of

         12  becoming homeless and what is being done to try and

         13  avoid that?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes, a real

         15  important issue, we have as part of Improved

         16  Outcomes, the Preparing Youth for Adulthood Program

         17  involves our hiring some highly trained specialists

         18  in teenagers and in teenage foster care who will be

         19  working with the private agencies as part of our

         20  oversight, not just to determine whether the classes

         21  are being given to help kids learn how to launder

         22  their clothes, but also to determine precisely

         23  what's being done to prepare this young person for a

         24  job, what help is being offered to help kids get

         25  ready for housing, all those sorts of things, the
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          2  absence of which except in a few agencies has left

          3  us in the situation where too many kids have aged

          4  out without what they need. Even at age 21, you

          5  know, the rest of the country, most systems keep

          6  kids through 18, we keep them through 21 if they

          7  want us to. But there have been too many situations

          8  where children have spent the last two, three years

          9  in residential treatment centers and then at age 21

         10  they're on their own. And at that point we're

         11  getting requests to keep them in foster care until

         12  preparations can be made, and it's that kind of

         13  inattention to a critical issue that is part of

         14  improved outcomes, and I think will lead to those

         15  improved outcomes or to people not, to agencies

         16  doing better by those kids.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Currently how

         18  many would you say are either becoming homeless each

         19  year or, you know, in threat of becoming homeless?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: There are 800

         21  children I would say, that's probably high,

         22  somewhere between 500 and 800 children who age out,

         23  depending on what you mean by that. Many of them

         24  have resources in the community but they leave

         25  without a permanent family arrangement.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. I

          3  appreciate it.

          4                 Commissioner, I know --

          5                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I would add

          6  to that, the critical factor is, if that teenager

          7  comes into care, if she is placed with a good

          8  family, a foster family, rather than in group

          9  settings, those children do much better. Even if she

         10  is not adopted, that family will be her family into

         11  the future if it's a good foster family, and many of

         12  those kids are adopted, even at age 18.

         13                 So, the system can't just be changed

         14  at the end. It has to be changed throughout. The

         15  first placement decision is the best indicator of

         16  whether a kid will later age out.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That's very

         18  helpful. And thank you for your testimony and your

         19  fine answers. We have a number of items we'll

         20  follow-up with you on, and typically want to work

         21  with you on Family Court, and we'll come back to you

         22  on that.

         23                 I know Council Member Reyna and

         24  Council Member Gonzalez had a question.

         25                 Council Member Reyna.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Commissioner, I

          3  wanted to just touch base on the OST program, and I

          4  know that obviously you're not heading OST, it's

          5  DYCD, but in the transition of the cost savings,

          6  what happens to children during the summer months

          7  and they're out of school, is OST going to function

          8  the way child care centers provided services all

          9  year round?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes, that's

         11  part of the deal. OST is to be provided around the

         12  year. Year-round.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Year-round. And

         14  it's my understanding that if a parent comes to a

         15  child care center, because they have not found a

         16  DYCD site providing OST, due to, you know,

         17  overcapacity, whatever the case may be, or lack of

         18  OST sites, then that parent goes with a voucher to

         19  have it approved by ACS. I'm being told that centers

         20  are receiving just incidents where parents are being

         21  deterred from going to ACS centers but encouraged,

         22  well, there's another OST site. It may perhaps be

         23  farther for that family to travel, rather than just

         24  approving that voucher to go to the ACS site; is

         25  that now customary at ACS? Why is it that that
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          2  parent is not being respected as to where they want

          3  to go, rather than encouraging them to travel

          4  farther?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: It's not

          6  our intent to encourage parents to travel farther.

          7  Parents in our system who have children who are

          8  turning school age are given priority in OST

          9  programs. We have been working very closely with

         10  DYCD, and there are slots set aside in OST programs

         11  for children turning school age.

         12                 If a parent goes to an OST site,

         13  let's say, and there is no capacity, they are

         14  encouraged to call DYCD or our information and

         15  referral line so that we can assist them in finding

         16  an OST program.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: What if that

         18  parent is interested in going to that center,

         19  though? It seems like they're being encouraged to

         20  find an OST site, and there is limited slots of the

         21  reserved for ACS children, so-to-speak.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: We've

         23  been working very, very closely with DYCD to ensure

         24  that as children turn school age, that there is a

         25  priority and a certain number of slots set aside for
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          2  that population.

          3                 And, so, again, if there is an

          4  instance where a parent cannot find OST, they're

          5  encouraged to follow DYCD or us to find that.

          6                 We no longer have ACS contracted

          7  school-aged care. So, there is no care provided at

          8  that center through a contract with ACS for

          9  school-age services.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Just bear with

         11  me then.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Sure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: A voucher is

         14  not going to be accepted regardless at a contracted

         15  child care center. It would not be approved for that

         16  child. If a parent comes to my child care center

         17  with a voucher because they can't find OST slots in

         18  the neighborhood, and we are encouraging them to

         19  stay with us, then we send them back to ACS to have

         20  it approved so that we can accept the child but ACS

         21  is telling them, no, we can't do that.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: We are

         23  not issuing vouchers for the school, for those who

         24  are --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: At all?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: No.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Okay.

          4                 And as far as the aging down of child

          5  care centers, I know that Council Member James had

          6  asked this question, and I was in the room when we

          7  were having this conversation, there was a specific

          8  conversation about the aging down in assisting

          9  centers age down, but clearly it was mentioned that

         10  the money that was going to be used was not as a

         11  grant but rather as a loan to be able to support the

         12  center that has a contract with ACS to upgrade its

         13  facility to age down?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Are you

         15  referring to meetings with individual providers,

         16  Council member, regarding proposals to age down?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm referring

         18  specifically to the Delegation, the Brooklyn

         19  Delegation when we had met and we were talking about

         20  all the different scenarios as to how we can

         21  possibly help, where there was the list of different

         22  centers being targeted as at risk, we wanted to be

         23  able to have an elaborate discussion as to what

         24  scenarios are out there, and that's how we were able

         25  to receive the information that there is the
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          2  possibility of aging down, that there is a fund but

          3  the fund is not a grant where they'll be able to

          4  upgrade and provide services, but rather within time

          5  they would have to be paying that back.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: I don't

          7  recall ever having that discussion with the Brooklyn

          8  Delegation, if you're referring to the meeting in

          9  which I briefed you on the programs and the full

         10  enrollment effort. But again, I want to state

         11  clearly that when a program puts in a proposal to

         12  age down their classroom, and there are start-up

         13  funds associated with aging down that classroom, as

         14  part of that proposal, and if we approve it, we fund

         15  those costs. There is no payback of that money to

         16  ACS for that purpose.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So that's an

         18  investment that the City will make on a site; how do

         19  you recoup that? Or your intention is not to recoup

         20  it?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: No, we

         22  do not recoup funds that are associated with the

         23  start-up cost for aging down a classroom from

         24  pre-school let's say to toddler care. They do not.

         25  It's a one-time amount of money that's provided,
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          2  it's based on that actual program and classroom

          3  needs, or multiple classrooms, that's provided to

          4  that program as part of their budget.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And the same

          6  fashion as far as aging down in concerned, the aging

          7  down process includes getting licensed, going

          8  through the process of being licensed, not just

          9  through ACS, but also through DOH, correct?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Yes,

         11  that is correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And how long

         13  does that whole process take, or is it given a

         14  priority because we're trying to deal with the

         15  circumstances site-by-site?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: I'm

         17  being told that it depends, it can take upwards of

         18  three weeks for that process to happen.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Okay.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HARTZOG: Again,

         21  just so we're clear. If a program, and we approve

         22  the process to age down, that program is held

         23  harmless. It's not as if we're monitoring enrollment

         24  at that point. We've made a decision to age down so

         25  we work with that program to do so.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Absolutely.

          3  Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. I

          5  believe Council Member Sara Gonzalez had a question.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Good

          7  afternoon, Commissioner, and Deputy Commissioners.

          8  How are you today? My question goes back to your

          9  testimony, Commissioner, I believe on page, I

         10  believe, five, where you spoke about the Juvenile

         11  Justice Initiative. As you know, I'm Chair of the

         12  Juvenile Justice Committee, so I'm very interested

         13  in this.

         14                 First of all, since it is budget I'll

         15  bet back to the cost part, but I have several

         16  questions, and thank you, Chairs, for this hearing.

         17                 First of all, in respect to the 125

         18  New York City youth, and I understand that this

         19  program is a pilot program which is working mostly

         20  in the Bronx, or in the Bronx alone, the Juvenile

         21  Justice Initiative? It says the after care component

         22  of this initiative --

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It's just the

         24  after care component.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Oh, just the
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          2  after care.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: So the rest

          4  of it is Citywide.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Okay. All

          6  right. I certainly would love to be able to at some

          7  point get some kind of forms or whatever that are

          8  utilized in this program, I'd love to be able to

          9  look at the dynamics of the protocol of it.

         10                 As you know, for the last few years

         11  the Council has been working very hard in the

         12  Juvenile Justice Committee, the Discharge Planning,

         13  Alternatives to Detention, we have been very, very

         14  successful, though we still have a long way to go.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: And, so, I'd

         17  like to know also if down the line maybe yourself,

         18  and Commissioner Neil Hernandez, if that's possible,

         19  or maybe the Council staff, as well, could come

         20  together to see what we could do. And then I'd also

         21  like to know, is there any possibility that some of

         22  these young people are already being serviced, or

         23  there's any duplication, there may be a question

         24  within the program that's asked, or maybe you could

         25  share a little bit about the program?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Young people

          3  who have been in or who are currently in foster

          4  care, and who get caught up in the Juvenile Justice

          5  System, we have developed these services in order to

          6  keep them safely with their family or with an

          7  alternative foster family, a special needs foster

          8  family.

          9                 And our approach is to keep these

         10  young people from getting caught up deeper into the

         11  juvenile justice then as necessary. Unlike what you

         12  will see in many places around the country, it seems

         13  to us that simply because a child has been arrested

         14  for the second, third or fourth time is not the

         15  point at which unless the child is simply not safe

         16  in the community we should as an agency walk away.

         17  So what we are doing is with the use of private

         18  provider agencies who have been trained to use one

         19  of these three special programs, what we've been

         20  doing is, as soon as the Probation Department

         21  decides they want to recommend a child be sent away

         22  to an institution, we are available to them, to the

         23  family, to the law guardian and to the judge to

         24  offer this alternative, and if everyone agrees to

         25  the alternative being provided, which is usually
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          2  intensive supervision in the community, sometimes a

          3  highly structured foster family, as soon as that's

          4  agreed to, then we make available through our staff

          5  who are in the court, linkages up to these agencies.

          6                 The second group, the after care

          7  group are those kids who are in residential

          8  treatment centers on a juvenile delinquency warrant.

          9  And what happens too frequently with them is, once

         10  they are sent away, they are there for at least a

         11  year and maybe two, and not enough attention is paid

         12  to what the needs of this child and family are that

         13  might cause them to be returned safely sooner, it's

         14  just the length of stay that a particular facility

         15  uses. So, what we do then is link up with the young

         16  person, the law guardian, relatives, et cetera, in

         17  the institution, and plan for them to return in a

         18  more highly structured way than just through

         19  probation and that's the after care component that's

         20  starting in the Bronx.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Okay. Well,

         22  I just want to understand. So, is there any

         23  conversations that go on, for example, when a young

         24  person is in a detention center between you and --

         25                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Is there any

          3  conversations or sharing of information, should I

          4  say, between the two?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Absolutely,

          6  yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Okay, great.

          8                 And then the other thing is, as you

          9  know, the family collaborative, the initiative that

         10  we have at DJJ, I don't know if you're familiar with

         11  it?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: But an

         14  excellent program that's on the way. I'd really like

         15  to see how it compares and if there's anything you

         16  could do to strengthen both?

         17                 And then what is the cost of the

         18  pilot program at this point?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'm sorry, I

         20  don't have that information available right away.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Okay. If you

         22  could get that, I certainly would appreciate it. And

         23  I'd love for us to follow up and meet maybe with --

         24                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It's 11.4

         25  million per year to serve 350 youth.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Okay. And

          3  how old is this, about a year?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It just got

          5  started in January.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Incredible.

          7                 Okay, so we definitely need to talk.

          8  And I really, really thank you, because our children

          9  are our future and the recidivism rate in the City

         10  of New York is extremely high.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It's 80

         12  percent for most facilities.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Absolutely.

         14                 And then you also spoke about

         15  country, other jurisdictions across the country. I'd

         16  like to also be able to see some of those stats, if

         17  possible, okay?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes. Those

         19  three programs have a very rich research history,

         20  yes.

         21                 They've proven their effectiveness.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: So, maybe we

         23  should join up and make this issue really stronger.

         24  Thank you. Thank you, Chairs.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 Our last question from -- oh, we have

          4  two, sorry. Council Member Mealy has a question for

          5  you, and following Councilwoman Mealy is Letitia

          6  James. She has a very small one. These are so small

          7  they're just going to get that big.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: It's going to

          9  be very small.

         10                 The child safety progress, I know

         11  we're getting 6.8 million in regards to that, and

         12  you say you're going to have 1,000 additional new

         13  jobs?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: New

         15  preventive slots so that a worker has a caseload of

         16  about 12 families, those are 12 slots.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: 12 slots. So,

         18  it's only slots, it's not new jobs.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: So, none of the

         21  6.8 million will be to hire new people, except

         22  attorneys and --

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: No, no, it

         24  will be to hire new preventive agency workers and

         25  supervisors.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Some of them

          3  are in DC 37 just as well, right? Provisional?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, these

          5  are not City employees. These are private agencies,

          6  the preventive agencies.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Child service

          8  along with DC 37, Local 371, Office of Labor

          9  Relation, Department of Citywide Administration.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It's

         11  different from the thousand preventive slots. This

         12  is the Improved Outcomes for Children. There will be

         13  500 new ACS positions created between now and July 1

         14  a year from now.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Well, will be

         16  500 new jobs?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Um-hmm.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: How many of

         19  them will be in-house? Or are you going to take all

         20  of them from outside?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We project

         22  somewhere around 40, 50 percent will be hired from

         23  within. But that's a projection right now. It's open

         24  to both inside candidates and outside. Of course, we

         25  want to make sure that our staff get full attention
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          2  in the hiring process.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: We want that

          4  but we know a lot of people are doing two or three

          5  jobs in agencies, and when a job opens, the agency

          6  normally goes outside and not hire within when

          7  people are doing a job, they have been doing a job

          8  for years. So, I just hope that you all take that

          9  into consideration and make sure --

         10                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes, part of

         11  our planning.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: That's good.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Councilwoman James.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes, half a

         19  question. Just following up, Council Member Reyna

         20  reminded me, the child support orders, apparently

         21  there is a rule that in order to get child care

         22  services, you have to get a child support order, you

         23  have to go to family court. The City Council

         24  members, some members of the City Council, Council

         25  Member Reyna and I were working with some unions and
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          2  some day care providers to get that Executive Order

          3  rescinded by the Spitzer Administration.

          4                 What is the position of ACS with

          5  respect to the recision of that requirement, which,

          6  again, based on my experience, talking to my

          7  constituents, it drives them underground,

          8  unfortunately, because of whatever reason, I

          9  recognize that it's good intentions, but

         10  unfortunately it's good intentions gone bad.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Or unintended

         13  consequences.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: You may

         15  remember, actually we initially raised this issue

         16  when the Governor's Executive Order was issued two

         17  years ago, something like that, and actually sent a

         18  fairly strong letter asking for a waiver, which was

         19  then rejected, again, by the previous

         20  administration. So, we have many of the same worries

         21  you have.

         22                 I'm happy to say that as recently as

         23  just yesterday afternoon, Commissioner Doar and I

         24  have agreed to meet to pull together a new waiver

         25  request that we will agree to by consensus,  and
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          2  with that sort of waiver request, I think we can do

          3  away with our, my intent is to look at the specific

          4  regulations and make them much more friendly to the

          5  parents who are in need of the child care.

          6                 We do, though, I do want to say, on

          7  behalf of both Commissioner Doar and myself, that I

          8  think the intent, I don't know what the previous

          9  Administration's intention was, but the intent of

         10  seeing to it that every parent gets a fair shake at

         11  getting support from those who are legally

         12  responsible for providing support, it's a good

         13  thing. But we don't want to use it in terms of child

         14  care availability if it is going to have, as you

         15  mentioned, negative impacts.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Unintended

         17  consequences.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I salute you.

         20                 So, are you saying Commissioner Doar

         21  and yourself can issue a waiver and it doesn't

         22  require --

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We can only

         24  ask for one but we can agree together on what would

         25  be in that waiver.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I'm certain

          3  that the Chair of General Welfare would join you, as

          4  well as Council Member Reyna and myself, would

          5  certainly join you in a letter of support to

          6  Governor Spitzer to waive that requirement. And I

          7  thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you very

          9  much. Before we move on to the public, I have just

         10  one question. Is it possible for you to provide to

         11  the Committee a list of where all your locations are

         12  by borough?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure.

         14  Locations of field offices, child care centers?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Child care

         16  centers.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Child care

         18  centers, oh, sure.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: We don't have

         20  that. It would be very helpful if we did. And I

         21  think probably would be helpful --

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It's actually

         23  on our website, but we'll make it available.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: I know the last

         25  time you were going to put it on the website.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It's on the

          3  website.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: But if we can have

          5  that list --

          6                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 I want to reiterate what has been

         10  said about what has happened with your agency, and I

         11  think the work you do is really tremendous and all

         12  of you need to be congratulated.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Could I make

         14  one final statement? We are joined today by Judy

         15  Chernikov, who will stand up now, she is Assistant

         16  Commissioner for Budget, Claiming and Revenue and

         17  has been sitting in this seat for 25 years.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: That's a very

         19  important lady.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Twenty-five

         21  years and this is her last hearing we think.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Really? Okay.

         23                 (Applause.)

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, thank you,

         25  Commissioner. This concludes the Administration for

                                                            164

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  Children's Services portion.

          3                 We will now hear from members of the

          4  public on any of the testimony from today.

          5                 We're going to group you into four

          6  panels, and this room is needed before 5:00 because

          7  there is an Asian-Pacific Island event right here in

          8  this room, so I'm going to limit the testimony to

          9  two minutes per testifier. And if anybody wants to

         10  submit testimony which will be incorporated into the

         11  record, you can get extra credit.

         12                 And we've already gotten the United

         13  Federation of Teachers, Randi Weingarten, has agreed

         14  to submit testimony, and Elana Broitman from UJA

         15  Federation of New York.

         16                 All right, the first panel consists

         17  of Veronica Eady, Edith Holzer, Dr. A. Lenora

         18  Taitt-Magubane. Forgive me if I mispronounce your

         19  names, because I'm trying to read handwritings. Mary

         20  Alice Scully, Patricia Barnes, and Cascille Andela.

         21                 Okay, do you want to choose among

         22  yourselves who wants to go first? Good.

         23                 MS. EADY: Since you called me first,

         24  I'll go first.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We'll do it in
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          2  the order I called you, how's that?

          3                 MS. EADY: Okay. My name is Veronica

          4  Eady. I'm a staff attorney with New York Lawyers for

          5  the Public Interest. I'm testifying this afternoon

          6  with respect to the education budget, and more

          7  specifically to the School Construction Authority.

          8                 I am submitting written testimony but

          9  I will try to read through this in the two minutes

         10  that I have. As you know, new schools are springing

         11  up across New York City in order to alleviate

         12  overcrowding and to replace old facilities.

         13                 As a part of this effort, the New

         14  York City School Construction Authority, in addition

         15  to creating seats through new construction will also

         16  be leasing existing facilities to turn them into

         17  schools. Given the limited space available, we are

         18  concerned that some of these leased facilities will

         19  be sited on contaminated properties, as has happened

         20  in the past.

         21                 For example, in 2004, contaminated

         22  property was turned into a high school called the

         23  Soundview Educational Campus. More recently the City

         24  Council approved the Mott Haven site to be on a

         25  contaminated site in the Bronx, and my organization
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          2  represents communities in both of those cases.

          3                 Our organization is concerned that

          4  when new schools are constructed on contaminated

          5  land, but when schools -- there's a minimal public

          6  process when new schools are constructed. To build a

          7  new school, State law requires the SCA to submit a

          8  site plan to the City Council and there is community

          9  review. Unfortunately, the SCA argues that its

         10  leasing program is not subject to the same

         11  requirement as new construction. There are virtually

         12  no public notice or opportunity for hearing. We went

         13  through the 600-page five-year capital plan and

         14  that's the only notice that the public gets that new

         15  schools are opening on contaminated property, so

         16  we're asking the City Council to close the leasing

         17  loophole, legislation is being introduced at the

         18  State level and Council Member Jackson is

         19  introducing legislation here in the City Council and

         20  we ask you to support it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: One second to go.

         22  Perfect.

         23                 MS. EADY: I summarized.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Ms. Holzer.

         25                 MS. HOLZER: Thank you. My name is
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          2  Edith Holzer. I'm representing the Council of Family

          3  and Child Caring Agencies, COFCCA. COFCCA is a

          4  statewide membership organization for child welfare

          5  services providers, representing 110 not-for-profit

          6  agencies that contract with the New York City

          7  Administration for Children's Services and County

          8  Departments of Social Services to provide foster

          9  care, preventive services, adoption and after care

         10  services, as well as education for children on our

         11  facility campuses. Our member agencies provide

         12  foster care to almost all the City's children in

         13  care and preventive services to well over 85 percent

         14  of the families served by New York City.

         15                 On behalf of the vulnerable children

         16  and families served by these agencies, we thank the

         17  City Council for its actions last year in enacting

         18  the child safety initiative that lowered caseloads

         19  and preventive services, allowing the programs to

         20  spend more time with families so that children could

         21  be better protected in those families.

         22                 In previous testimony we had given

         23  examples of the kind of cases that these agencies

         24  work with and examples of the high level of danger

         25  to the children in these families and why they need
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          2  so much attention and so much time.

          3                 Today we have a lot of

          4  representatives from the different agencies and I

          5  will let them speak for themselves, as they do so

          6  well about the heroic work that they do.

          7                 We're asking the Council to please

          8  restore the 4.2 million that you set aside last year

          9  for child safety initiatives so that case loads and

         10  preventive services could be lowered from one to 15

         11  to one to 12, and when we say one to 12 that means

         12  one caseworker to 12 families. Those families could

         13  have up to five children in each family, so we're

         14  talking about one caseworker to more than 40

         15  individuals, and we just want to be clear on that,

         16  that everybody understands the level of risk in the

         17  families, the amount of time that's required. And

         18  thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         20                 MS. ANDELA: Good afternoon. My name

         21  is Cascille Andela, employed by Brooklyn Bureau of

         22  Community Service and the Foster Care Prevention

         23  Program.

         24                 I'm speaking today on behalf of my

         25  colleagues, and we're asking you in the same manner
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          2  to make it a priority to restore the 4.2 million for

          3  general preventive caseload reduction.

          4                 Without the necessary funds, the

          5  caseloads will return to the previous state and the

          6  increased workload will continue to take a toll on

          7  the quality of work that we're able to provide.

          8                 The time that we spend with our

          9  families is valuable. The work that's done extends

         10  well beyond the six-minute sessions per week, with

         11  the eight children, five children per family.

         12                 The work encompasses maintaining

         13  consistent contact with the schools to ensure safety

         14  and progress of the children. It also includes

         15  coordinating with other social service agencies

         16  involved with the family to ensure consistent and

         17  also complimentary treatment.

         18                 In addition, as a social worker, I

         19  personally strive to be a source of support for the

         20  families, a source of support that's lacking in many

         21  of our families. With the higher caseloads my

         22  ability is directly impacted to give the time that

         23  the families need and the families are the ones who

         24  realize that.

         25                 I'm asking you today to help maintain
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          2  the reduced caseloads so that each family and client

          3  can receive the time that they deserve and that they

          4  need.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          7                 Go ahead.

          8                 MS. BARNES: Hello, excuse me. My name

          9  is Patricia Barnes, I am a client at one of the

         10  Brooklyn Bureau agencies located in Brooklyn and Ms.

         11  Cascille Andela is my counselor, for myself and my

         12  children.

         13                 I just want to just add that, you

         14  know, with the assistance with Brooklyn Bureau, and

         15  with Cascille herself, it has helped strengthen me

         16  and my family and my son on a more straight and

         17  narrow path. Even though the 60 minutes that we get

         18  is really not enough, I would like to stress that we

         19  need a little bit more time. You know, I've

         20  accomplished some of my goals, which has helped my

         21  children to see that if I could accomplish it, they

         22  could accomplish it with the help of people such as

         23  Cascille and the rest of the people here in the

         24  room. And if it's possible, please, with all of your

         25  help, I would appreciate it.
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          2                 I could only speak for myself and I'm

          3  trying to speak for all the clients in general.

          4                 DR. TAITT-MAGUBANE: My name is Lenora

          5  Taitt-Magubane, Program Director, Bronx Preventive

          6  Services for Steinway Child and Family Services.

          7                 We, too, are requesting that the City

          8  Council make it a priority to restore the 4.2

          9  million for the general preventive caseload

         10  reduction and add 2.5 million to reduce caseloads in

         11  other preventive programs, and to maintain

         12  supervisory ratios.

         13                 In our program we have one supervisor

         14  for nine workers, causing the program director to

         15  supervise four of the workers to absorb some of the

         16  pressure.

         17                 Many of the cases we are responsible

         18  for at this time are extremely intense and would

         19  have been in foster care ten years ago. These

         20  families require much more time and monitoring to

         21  deal with the myriad of problems that come to

         22  preventive with.

         23                 If the money is added, the presently

         24  over-taxed workers will leave their positions

         25  causing increased deterioration of these families in
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          2  need and risk of increased health and safety issues

          3  on the part of children and families. Children are

          4  our most precious resource and deserve no less than

          5  qualitative services from our programs. We implore

          6  you to join us in providing these services by

          7  restoring the 4.2 million, the general preventive

          8  and adding the 2.5 to reduce the caseloads and

          9  maintain the supervisory ratios to empower parents

         10  to obtain the optimum level of family functioning

         11  for the safety and welfare of our children in New

         12  York City.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         15                 MS. SCULLY: Good afternoon. And thank

         16  you for the attention you are giving to our work

         17  today. You've heard my colleagues speak of the

         18  specific challenges prevention workers face in

         19  addressing the most pressing needs of the fragile

         20  families in our City. My name is Mary Alice Scully,

         21  and I work at Pelham Family Center in the Bronx.

         22  I've been a prevention worker since 1983.

         23                 I would like to take a moment to put

         24  our work into a larger context. You all, the whole

         25  City Council, ACS, other City systems like the Board
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          2  of Education, public assistance, housing, you all

          3  have very great expectations of us, and hopes in

          4  this era of great transition. I would like to focus

          5  on three large areas of transition that prevention

          6  workers are part of in this City of New York.

          7                 First, with the decision made back in

          8  the seventies to try to keep struggling problem

          9  families together, rather than place children out of

         10  home, this new idea of the seventies is coming of

         11  age now. Just a couple of years ago there were more

         12  children in placement than in prevention. Now there

         13  are more children in prevention than in placement.

         14                 The consequence of this long movement

         15  have been two-fold: One is that we do not focus our

         16  work on children. In fact, we focus on the whole

         17  family, and as it is said, that means that with at

         18  least three members of the family, if a worker has

         19  12 families, that worker has 40 clients to 60

         20  clients. The other consequence of the change of

         21  keeping the work in the community and the family, is

         22  that the work has become increasingly more difficult

         23  as the children and ever more fragile families are

         24  removed, that would have been removed, but are now

         25  referred to prevention.
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          2                 Thus, the challenges faced by

          3  prevention workers often represent some of the most

          4  severe issues faced by the population Citywide.

          5                 The second large transition is the

          6  growing realization of the past 25 years that it's

          7  simply not okay to hit your wife.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Can you just sum

          9  up, please?

         10                 MS. SCULLY: It's not okay to hit

         11  children, and basically it's not okay to solve

         12  problems with your hands. This is a hard sell in the

         13  City of New York and during a time of warfare.

         14                 And, finally, I'll sum up by saying

         15  that the last unsolved problem in this City and in

         16  this country is the fact that City, State and

         17  federal agencies, as well as medical insurance

         18  companies, have failed to address the issues of

         19  families caused by mental and emotional illness, and

         20  that basically in this larger context of not being

         21  able to address these issues, left to the families

         22  to struggle, and so when we work in prevention, the

         23  idea of working with 12 families rather than 15

         24  families makes it more realistic to meet your goals

         25  for us. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you all.

          3                 The next panel will consist of Lee

          4  Turner; Will from the Jewish Board of Family and

          5  Children's Services. Will somebody or other. From

          6  the Jewish Board also Ms. Johnson; Robert Sisma; and

          7  Adrienne Williams Myers. Go ahead.

          8                 MR. TURNER: Good afternoon. I am Lee

          9  Turner, Program Director at Good Shepherd Services,

         10  and child welfare and youth development agency that

         11  currently provides two very strong networks of

         12  preventive programs in Brooklyn and the Bronx, as

         13  well as foster care and group care services.

         14                 I'm also Chair of the New York City

         15  FRP Coalition. I'm here today to support the

         16  excellent improvement the City Council has made to

         17  strengthen and enhance preventive services by the

         18  addition of 4.2 million to reduce caseload size.

         19                 I have witnessed the positive effects

         20  of the reduced caseloads in our general preventive

         21  programs. Morale is significantly improved among

         22  staff. Staff is able to spend more quality time with

         23  the families and children they serve that leads to

         24  more substantial change.

         25                 Staff is also able to engage more
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          2  families in important group work like the parenting

          3  journey that works to nurture parents and challenges

          4  them to explore the effects of how they were reared

          5  and how this impacts their relationships with their

          6  own children.

          7                 The staff now has more time to meet

          8  the day-to-day challenges they experience from the

          9  demands of paperwork to handling crises situations

         10  with families. We must sustain this important

         11  initiative.

         12                 I urgently request the restoration of

         13  4.2 million for caseload reduction.

         14                 In addition, it is essential that we

         15  look at the wider array of preventive programs, such

         16  as the family rehabilitation programs and the

         17  specialized medical programs to keep children safe

         18  at home while their parents work in improving their

         19  parenting and family crises are resolved.

         20                 The additional 2.5 million needed to

         21  reduce caseload size for specialized programs brings

         22  the total amount of funding needed to 6.7 million.

         23                 FRPs are home-based intensive foster

         24  care prevention programs that work specifically with

         25  families affected with substance abuse. They were
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          2  first created in 1990 with a caseload of seven cases

          3  per worker --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: You get an extra

          5  five seconds.

          6                 MR. TURNER: Thank you.

          7                 But this climbed over the years to

          8  the current level of ten. Staff simply cannot

          9  perform the safety assessments and high quality work

         10  that is rightfully demanded of them, while still

         11  satisfying the unfunded, labor-intensive

         12  computerized case and program recording demands of

         13  connections and promise, as well as their other

         14  countless responsibilities with the caseloads they

         15  currently carry.

         16                 All right, I'll leave it there. Thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         19                 MR. MADEIRA: Hello. I want to first

         20  thank the Committee for the opportunity to add my

         21  testimony on behalf of caseload reduction.

         22                 My name is will Madeira. I am a

         23  Program Director at Southern Brooklyn Family

         24  Services, one of five preventive programs in the

         25  Jewish Board of Family and Children's Services.
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          2                 Our clients are mostly poor and

          3  working class families who live in the Flatbush area

          4  of Brooklyn. We provide case management and

          5  counseling services for children, adolescents and

          6  their families, to help restore their sense of

          7  well-being, create safety in the home and ultimately

          8  prevent out-of-home placement.

          9                 I ask the Council to please make it a

         10  priority to restore the $4.2 million for general

         11  preventive caseload reduction and add 2.5 million to

         12  reduce caseloads in the other preventive programs

         13  and to maintain supervisory ratios.

         14                 Caseload reduction has so far enabled

         15  two very positive developments in my program. Staff

         16  morale has increased and has helped retain qualified

         17  workers, and most importantly, families are being

         18  better served because caseworkers have more

         19  flexibility to assist families by, for example,

         20  escorting them to HRA to aid in applying for public

         21  assistance, to attend important school meetings with

         22  their children and their guidance counselors.

         23                 In addition to the family and group

         24  counseling we provide, having the flexibility and

         25  time to aid the family with procuring concrete
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          2  services or advocating for them across multiple City

          3  systems greatly increases the effectiveness of our

          4  practice.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: You get extra

          7  credit for finishing early.

          8                 MS. JOHNSON: Can I get his 30

          9  seconds? My name is Marilyn Johnson. I'm the

         10  Director of Preventive Services for the Jewish Board

         11  of Family and Children's Services, and I'm also

         12  grateful for the opportunities to speak today.

         13                 You know, I, too, am urging the City

         14  Council to make a priority of restoring $4.2 million

         15  for general preventive caseload reduction and adding

         16  2.5 million to reduce caseloads in the other

         17  preventive programs and to maintain supervisory

         18  ratios. JBFCS is proud that the agency participated

         19  in the first pilot preventive service programs

         20  funded in the early 1970s that demonstrated that

         21  providing family support services can help children

         22  remain safely at home and prevent the traumatic

         23  experience of foster care.

         24                 At any one JBFCS is able to provide

         25  services to 130 families in Community Boards 10, 11
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          2  and 12 in the Bronx, 150 families in Community

          3  Districts 13 and 14 in Brooklyn, 60 families on

          4  Staten Island plus the PINS Diversion Program that

          5  looks at every case referred to us with no capacity

          6  cap.

          7                 We have recently implemented a

          8  program under the Juvenile Justice Initiative that

          9  was discussed at the earlier testimony. In any one

         10  year we provide services to probably 400 families,

         11  at least 65 percent of these families have been

         12  referred to us by ACS Child Protective Offices. We

         13  are the servers of child protection and we are the

         14  future of child welfare.

         15                 The families present a myriad of

         16  problems that threaten the safety of their

         17  children's well-being from domestic violence,

         18  histories of child neglect or abuse, mental illness

         19  of the parent, poverty and unstable housing.

         20                 Our staff provide a range of

         21  services, and I just want to say, just as child

         22  protection has been supported, through the City OMB

         23  process, we're just urging the City Council to help

         24  us maintain those caseloads of 15 to 12. It's made a

         25  tremendous difference in the amount of time our

                                                            181

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  staff can spend as a family.

          3                 MR. SISMA: Good afternoon. My name is

          4  Robert Sisma, and I'm the Vice President of Mental

          5  Health and Preventive Services Division of Jewish

          6  Child Care Association.

          7                 I'd like to thank the Council for

          8  having these public hearings and giving myself,

          9  colleagues and the consumers the opportunity to

         10  speak on issues related to child welfare.

         11                 My agency provides two preventive

         12  service programs serving Central and Southern

         13  Brooklyn. I'm here asking the Council to make it a

         14  priority to restore the 4.2 million for general

         15  preventive caseload reduction and to add 2.5 million

         16  to reduce caseload in the other preventive programs

         17  and maintain the supervisory ratio.

         18                 Since caseloads were reduced from 15

         19  to 12 cases per preventive worker, the workers have

         20  been able to provide more intensive services to our

         21  families. Many of our families have three or more

         22  children. Many of them, both the adults and the

         23  children, have multi problems, including mental

         24  health, education, employment, medical, housing and

         25  day care. They have a history of domestic violence,
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          2  substance abuse and mental health issues. The entire

          3  family is our client. Even with a caseload

          4  reduction, many of our staff members are serving

          5  over 40 members of children and adults. If the

          6  caseload reduction is not restored, caseloads will

          7  increase again to 15 cases, which is a 20 percent

          8  increase. This will affect the quality of work that

          9  we provide as ACS moves to reduce foster care

         10  placement, a strong, preventive presence is

         11  necessary and keeping caseloads to 12 can help this

         12  endeavor.

         13                 Thank you, again, for your time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you all

         15  very much.

         16                 We have two more panels. The next

         17  panel will be Thomas D. Cocks; Stephanie Gendell;

         18  Lisa Caswell; Vani Sankarapandian; and Nyasha

         19  Griffith.

         20                 MR. COCKS: Good afternoon. My name is

         21  Tom Cocks. I work for the SCO Family of Services,

         22  Child Welfare Organization. I have been a Preventive

         23  Services Director for 24 years, and I actually

         24  started out 28 years ago in preventive services all

         25  that time.

                                                            183

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 I have no prepared statement, but I

          3  thought I would share one impact that the services

          4  had by the enhanced funding and that would continue

          5  if we get the 4.2 million and the 2.5 million that

          6  is proposed, and I'm sure the City Council will help

          7  us with it. We had the opportunity through a

          8  caseload reduction for some of the caseworkers to

          9  run more groups than we normally do. We added a

         10  parenting skills group and we reached 30 more people

         11  with that. We added tutoring services that reached

         12  many kids. We also ran domestic violence support

         13  groups for women, something we hadn't done in some

         14  years, and we've adopted a model of empowerment from

         15  CASEY Family Services with ACS funds that we were

         16  able to train people in financial literacy and

         17  advocacy. Those groups weren't possible if we hadn't

         18  been able to reduce caseloads and have caseworkers

         19  run these groups for their clients.

         20                 In the meantime, a curious impact

         21  occurred because without getting outside funds for

         22  the CASEY Family Services Financial Literacy and

         23  Advocacy Groups, there is now an FRP for that same

         24  effort, and as a result of having done it, we now

         25  have an opportunity for sustainability.
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          2                 Sometimes these funds actually grow

          3  into other things. Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          5                 MS. GENDELL: My name is Stephanie

          6  Gendell. I'm a Senior Policy Associate for Child

          7  Care and Child Welfare Services at Citizens'

          8  Committee for Children. I just wanted to first start

          9  off by saying that the Executive Budget does contain

         10  some of the items we were concerned about at the

         11  Preliminary Budget Hearing, particularly the money

         12  for the foster care re-estimate, the $9 million

         13  enhancement for prevention, and the 1,000 new slots.

         14  We thank the Council for the work that they did last

         15  year to add 4.2 million to reduce caseloads, and we

         16  apologize for being back here again asking for the

         17  4.2 million, but unfortunately we also would hope

         18  for an additional 2.5 million for the rest of the

         19  preventive program and for supervisors.

         20                 When the Commissioner testified

         21  earlier, he talked about the need for lower

         22  caseloads to address the attrition rate at ACS, and

         23  we would like the same thing for the provider

         24  programs as well.

         25                 Briefly addressing early parent
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          2  education. We also hope that the adopted budget will

          3  contain the money that is needed to resolve the $68

          4  million budget hole in ACS's child care budget.

          5                 And, finally, we also wanted to

          6  mention that the State has given New York City $60

          7  million more for 18,000 more four-year-olds to

          8  receive Universal Pre-kindergarten, and we hope that

          9  the City will be able to find the seats for these

         10  children, so that the children can receive the

         11  benefits of Universal Pre-kindergarten and not need

         12  to return the money back to the State.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         15                 MS. CASWELL: My name is Lisa Caswell.

         16  I'm the Preventive Director for the Day Care Council

         17  of New York's Family Support Program. I have a

         18  prepared statement, but I'm not going to read from

         19  it because there is not enough time.

         20                 What I want to just talk about is the

         21  fact that having been around the same length of time

         22  as some of my colleagues, we used to be able to make

         23  this work because we spent 30 percent of our time

         24  doing the advocacy, 30 percent of our time writing,

         25  and 30 percent of our time in crisis intervention
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          2  and counseling, and because of the recent

          3  developments in that input, where systems are not

          4  linked, in particular the Promise System, the

          5  Connection system, and the advocates documents that

          6  we still do on site to preserve the privacy of

          7  clients who are now spending 50 percent of our time

          8  writing, consequently we're not able to take care of

          9  the families that we're charged with the way we used

         10  to be able to because we're entering in and out of

         11  documentation systems that really are questionable

         12  in terms of the relevancy to the work we're doing.

         13                 I ask that you consider the

         14  possibility of continuing these funds because right

         15  now we're the biggest part of the system. We're the

         16  part of the system that everyone is counting on to

         17  actually keep kids out of care, and unless these

         18  caseloads stay at 12 we're not going to be able to

         19  continue to maintain this kind of responsibility.

         20  It's absolutely critical that you respond at this

         21  time. We cannot tolerate what's happening to us

         22  without your help.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         24                 MS. SANKARAPANDIAN: My name is Vani

         25  Sankarapandian, and I'm the Senior Policy Analyst
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          2  for Early Childhood Education and Child Welfare at

          3  the Federation of Protestant Welfare Agencies.

          4                 For 85 years FPWA has been a leading

          5  policy advocate, individuals and families served by

          6  our almost 300 member human service agencies and

          7  churches in and around New York City.

          8                 First I'd like to thank the Mayor and

          9  the City Council for their attention to the needs of

         10  children and families across New York City. We are

         11  especially pleased to see the investment of $2.4

         12  million in City funding in the Executive Budget, to

         13  support the 1,000 new slots for preventive services,

         14  as well as the $9 million for preventive

         15  enhancement.

         16                 Today, FPWA calls upon the City

         17  Council and the Mayor to make an even greater

         18  commitment in supporting vulnerable children and

         19  families in New York.

         20                 We strongly urge the Mayor and the

         21  Council to restore the $4.2 million added to the

         22  budget last year to reduce general preventive

         23  service caseload sizes from 15 to 12. Last year this

         24  funding which leverages over $8 million in State

         25  funds to over 130 general preventive providers in

                                                            188

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  communities in each borough allowing agencies to

          3  reduce overwhelming caseloads and accommodate

          4  increasingly complex cases.

          5                 Agencies must be able to rely on this

          6  funding in the future, and we again urge the Mayor

          7  and the Council to restore this investment.

          8                 We also strongly support increasing

          9  this funding by $2.5 million to help reduce

         10  caseloads for the remaining preventive programs, and

         11  to ensure that all preventive programs can maintain

         12  the ACS recommended supervisory ratio of one to

         13  five.

         14                 FPWA strongly supports Speaker

         15  Quinn's proposal to create a $300 refundable runners

         16  tax credit with a median income of roughly $35,000

         17  per year. New York's runners certainly deserve a

         18  comparable rebate to homeowners.

         19                 And, finally, we ask the City Council

         20  to restore $1.5 million for food pantries funded

         21  through the Human Resources Administration.

         22                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         23  testify.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         25                 MS. GRIFFITH: Hi. Good afternoon. My
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          2  name is Nyasha Griffith. I'm here to testify on

          3  behalf of the Neighborhood Family Services

          4  Coalition. We are a group of service providers and

          5  advocacy organizations committed to the provision of

          6  quality service at the neighborhood level.

          7                 I just thank you again for convening

          8  this hearing and for your support throughout the

          9  years.

         10                 Over the last calendar year or so ACS

         11  has taken steps to improve its own capacity to

         12  oversee the system and to keep children safe at home

         13  wherever possible. Some of the actions that ACS has

         14  taken includes hiring new workers, restructuring and

         15  providing increased support for their field

         16  operations.

         17                 While we're heartened that ACS is

         18  acting to reduce risk and improve their performance

         19  and oversight, we think it's equally difficult to

         20  have a similar investment in the front end

         21  preventive service workers that are doing work at

         22  the neighborhood level, and strengthening families

         23  capacity to keep their children safe in their home.

         24                 We're asking, again, for the Council

         25  to restore the $4.2 million. That was such a great
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          2  investment in the last year, in helping providers

          3  better serve families who are at risk of children

          4  being moved and placed into foster care.

          5                 We're also asking for 2.5 million to

          6  be added to extend the caseload reduction to the

          7  other areas that have been overlooked and to keep

          8  supervisory ratios at one to five.

          9                 We're also joining our colleagues at

         10  the Human Services Council to ask for a $6 million

         11  investment to fund a child welfare cost adjustment

         12  to workers who do preventive independent living and

         13  aftercare services, this would mirror adjustments

         14  that unionized municipal workers have also received

         15  in recent years.

         16                 Thank you for the opportunity to have

         17  testified.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 The next and last panel, and if I

         21  don't call your name, just come up if you want to

         22  testify, is Moria Dolan, Ralph Palladino, Patricia

         23  Campbell, Aisha Brown, and Elana Goldstein.

         24                 MR. PALLADINO: My name is Ralph

         25  Palladino, DC 37, Local 1549. It represents over
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          2  18,000 clerical and administrative employees,

          3  including over 6,000 working for HRA, ACS, DYCD. Our

          4  members are eligibility specialists 1, 2 and 3, who

          5  determine Medicaid and Food Stamp eligibility among

          6  other titles. I'll abridge the thank yous to the

          7  City Council. We're concerned with, in the following

          8  areas:

          9                 - Child Care. Child care assistance

         10  is badly needed by our members and the public.

         11  Working people must often choose between staying

         12  home to take care of their children and keeping a

         13  job. Increasing quality child care services and

         14  making them affordable will increase productivity

         15  for the public and private employees.

         16                 In order to keep New York working,

         17  we're asking that assistance be expanded to include

         18  more working people. We also ask that the City find

         19  funds to support the building of more child care

         20  centers, such as the one at Bellevue Hospital, and

         21  that are staffed by trained union members.

         22                 Child Care, Inc., estimates that the

         23  current supply in the City is only at 20 percent of

         24  what is needed. There is a 50 person waiting list at

         25  Bellevue alone.
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          2                 - Food Stamps. Food stamp locations

          3  report to DC 37 Clerical Division. There are severe

          4  staffing shortages of our members who determine

          5  eligibility. This is so even though currently there

          6  is a lot of overtime being done.

          7                 - Medicaid. With health care looming

          8  on the immediate horizon, the City needs to look at

          9  reinforcing HRA. This is especially true of centers,

         10  such as the Misca Centers (phonetic), located in

         11  City hospitals. Those centers are already stretched

         12  to the limits, and will require the additional

         13  staffing with the anticipated additional workload.

         14  Sites should be expanded to private hospitals also.

         15  They are critical for signing up people for Child

         16  Health Plus, the Governor's Program.

         17                 Finally, there should be no need for

         18  shortages outlined if we have fair taxation in the

         19  City and State budgets.

         20                 We call on the City Council to

         21  support closing tax loopholes for banks and reject

         22  proposals for reducing income taxes, and clothing

         23  taxes that only benefit the rich at the expense of

         24  services.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          3                 MS. DOLAN: My name is Moira Dolan, I

          4  am Assistant Director of Public Policy at DC 37. I'd

          5  like to thank the Committee and Council Member

          6  DeBlasio for working with our union and with New

          7  York Union Child Care Coalition on an initiative for

          8  child care that we're hoping to get introduced.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: You can thank me

         10  for staying, too.

         11                 MS. DOLAN: And thank you very much

         12  for staying and listening.

         13                 I'd also like to reiterate on the

         14  child support enforcement area, and the irony of

         15  ironies is that now absent fathers who pay their

         16  child support are going to get a tax credit from the

         17  state. They are going to get rewarded for doing what

         18  they're supposed to do. Meanwhile, the mothers, very

         19  many of whom are members, single mothers, have to

         20  take time off, go to court, get the child support

         21  order and the add-on, and all they get is the

         22  subsidy that the State pays is reduced. The mother

         23  doesn't get any reward, the father can get up to

         24  $1,000 tax credit refundable, even if they owe no

         25  taxes, just for doing what they're supposed to do.
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          2                 So, I'm asking you in your capacity

          3  and your colleagues to support what Council Member

          4  James is doing to get this child support enforcement

          5  cooperation lifted from New York City. It is an

          6  undue burden on single mothers who are just trying

          7  to get by, trying to get the subsidies that they

          8  ought to be entitled to.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         11                 MS. DOLAN: It's a man's world.

         12                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: My name is Elana

         13  Goldstein, and I'm with the New York Legal

         14  Assistance Group, or NYLAG.

         15                 I'm very pleased to have this

         16  opportunity to inform members of the City Council of

         17  some of the services provided by NYLAG, to introduce

         18  a new and exciting initiative provided by NYLAG.

         19                 For those of you who are not familiar

         20  with NYLAG services, our organization provides

         21  direct legal case consultation, legal

         22  representation, class action and impact litigation

         23  and community education to no-income and

         24  working-poor New Yorkers who would otherwise be

         25  unable to afford or receive legal help. As a
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          2  Citywide Legal Services Organization, our salaried

          3  staff of over 60 professionals and 70 to 100

          4  volunteers provide legal assistance to a wide range

          5  of low-income populations.

          6                 NYLAG is composed of several units,

          7  including a general legal services unit, which

          8  provides, helps individuals of all ages who have

          9  been erroneously denied public benefits or whose

         10  benefits have been wrongfully delayed, a Matrimonial

         11  and Family Law Unit, and Immigrant Protection Unit

         12  which assists immigrants in applying for citizenship

         13  or legal residency status and assists immigrants in

         14  retaining appropriate public benefit, a Special

         15  Litigation Unit and a Legal Health Unit.

         16                 In 2006, NYLAG handled over 20,000

         17  cases, benefitting over 30,000 individuals. And last

         18  year, I'd note that our Immigration Unit received

         19  generous Immigrant Opportunities Initiative Funding

         20  from nine City Council members, totaling over

         21  $270,000.

         22                 With these funds, we were able to

         23  provide legal services to thousands of constituents,

         24  community education forums and training.

         25                 In addition, I'm pleased to announce
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          2  the launch of the New York Legal Assistance Group's

          3  Justice At Work Project.

          4                 The Justice At Work Project aims to

          5  ensure that low-wage and immigrant workers can

          6  enforce their rights under State and federal laws,

          7  including their rights to be paid minimum wage and

          8  overtime, and rights to be free from discrimination

          9  and harassment.

         10                 Thank you for your interest in the

         11  New York Legal Assistance Group.

         12                 I have brochures and information

         13  sheets for anyone who would like more information.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         15                 MS. CAMPBELL: Hi. My name is Patricia

         16  Campbell. I am a Parent Advocate in the Bronx, and I

         17  am in training to be a Parent Advocate.

         18                 For the past few weeks I've been

         19  sitting in a few discussions and meetings, only to

         20  realize that the issues are basically the same all

         21  across the board. Identifying with the language and

         22  cultural beliefs, there is a barrier with the West

         23  Africans, the Arabs, the Asians and the West

         24  Indians. Workers are needed to help to find help for

         25  families who have these values. They also need to be
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          2  able to properly assess the needs of the children

          3  and the parents on the whole to be able to bond the

          4  families back together.

          5                 They are also needed to be available

          6  for various emergencies that occur whenever a family

          7  is referred to preventive services. Emergencies do

          8  come up where these workers are sometimes needed to

          9  help the family through these things.

         10                 When a worker leaves a company due to

         11  frustration or they get fired for cutting corners,

         12  the family is left to stand alone to build trust

         13  again with a new worker.

         14                 This allows their time in preventive

         15  care to then be extended to a longer period.

         16                 Unless your goal is to be, what some

         17  parents have been saying, which is you're happy when

         18  they stay in care longer because then you get more

         19  money, then I agree and join with other agencies

         20  asking the Council, please make it a priority to

         21  restore 4.2 million for general preventive caseload

         22  reduction to maintain general preventive caseloads

         23  at 12 families instead of going back to 15.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         25                 Okay, that concludes the public
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          2  testimony.

          3                 One more. Anybody else? Speak now.

          4  Going once, going twice, the last testifier. Go

          5  ahead.

          6                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I represent

          7  Brooklyn Center for the Urban Environment.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And you can take

          9  two hours now.

         10                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: No, just kidding.

         12  Just kidding.

         13                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That's one hour

         14  and fifty-three minutes over there?

         15                 Okay, I represent Brooklyn Center for

         16  the Urban Environment. We do environmental education

         17  programs throughout the City, even though we have

         18  Brooklyn in our name. And basically I'm here to

         19  thank the City Council and the Department of

         20  Education for their ongoing support of our program.

         21  We are in over 250 schools across the City. Over the

         22  last two years we've reached almost 400, and both

         23  the City Council and the Department of Education

         24  have recognized the importance of our programming in

         25  the school system because it is enrichment. We're a
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          2  completely standards-based program, and offer the

          3  support that the schools and the parents want,

          4  supplementing existing programs in the school and

          5  professional development for teachers.

          6                 And, so we currently have two

          7  requests in for City Council for Capital and Expense

          8  report, and again wanted to thank the City Council

          9  for their support. We'll be relocating and really

         10  just creating an environment for education hub in

         11  Brooklyn, really to engage all the community and

         12  schools in dialogues that need to happen in order to

         13  create a more sustainable City.

         14                 So, just once again, just wanted to

         15  give thanks and gratitude to the Department of Ed,

         16  as well as the New York City Council for their

         17  support and really supporting enrichment programs in

         18  the schools that will be very much needed.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. That

         20  concludes the public portion of the testimony. As I

         21  stated earlier, we're going to read in entirety into

         22  the record the testimony of Randi Weingarten,

         23  President of the United Federation of Teachers, and

         24  Elana Broitman, Director of City Policy for Public

         25  Affairs to UJA Federation of New York. Anyone else
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          2  that shows up will take their testimony for

          3  submission.

          4                 This concludes the Finance hearing

          5  Executive Budget for the day. We will reconvene

          6  tomorrow morning at 9:30 with the Fire Department.

          7  We're adjourned.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 4:05 p.m.)
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